
 

Meeting contact Nina Neisser on 01257 515140 or email nina.neisser@chorley.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
THURSDAY, 23RD JANUARY 2020, 6.30 PM 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1, TOWN HALL, CHORLEY 
 

AGENDA 
  

APOLOGIES 
 

1 MINUTES OF MEETING THURSDAY, 26 SEPTEMBER 2019 OF 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE   

 

(Pages 3 - 8) 

2 DECLARATIONS OF ANY INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest 
in respect of matters contained in this agenda. 
 
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally 
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do, 
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may 
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave 
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a 
decision on the matter. 

 

 

3 PUBLIC QUESTIONS 
 

 

 Members of the public who have requested the opportunity to ask a 
question(s) on an item on the agenda will be asked to put their question(s) to 
the Committee.  Each member of the public will be allowed to ask one 
supplementary question within his/her allocated 3 minutes.   

 

 

SCRUTINY OF THE EXECUTIVE CABINET 
 

4 EXECUTIVE CABINET MINUTES 
 

(Pages 9 - 20) 

 To consider the Executive Cabinet minutes of the meetings held on 17 
October 2019 and 14 November 2019. 

 

 

5 NOTICE OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 
 

(Pages 21 - 58) 

 To view the latest notice of Executive Decisions click here: 
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=903&RP=115 
  
The document is also attached and correct as of 15 January 2020. 

 
 

 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/mgListPlanItems.aspx?PlanId=903&RP=115


6 BUDGET SCRUTINY 
 

(Pages 59 - 78) 

 Report of the Chief Finance Officer enclosed. 
 
The Executive Member for Resources will be present at the meeting to answer 
any questions the Committee may have. 

 

 

7 HEALTH SCRUTINY 
 

(Pages 79 - 88) 

 To consider the Work Plan of Lancashire County Council’s Health Scrutiny 
Committee. The Council’s representative on the Committee, Councillor 
Margaret France, will give a verbal update. 

 

 

8 REVIEW OF NEIGHBOURHOOD WORKING FOLLOWING THE 
BOUNDARY REVIEW 

 

 

 To discuss and consider the review of neighbourhood working and 
neighbourhood area meetings following the Boundary Review and all-out 
elections in May 2020. 

 

 

9 EXECUTIVE CABINET RESPONSE TO THE OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY TASK GROUP ON SOCIAL HOUSING STANDARDS 

 

(Pages 89 - 
104) 

 Report of Director (Early Intervention and Support) enclosed. 

 
 

10 REPORTS FROM THE TASK AND FINISH GROUPS 
 

 

 Overview and Scrutiny Task and Finish Group - Developing the Council’s 
Green Agenda 
To receive a verbal update on the inquiry from the Chair, Councillor Steve 
Holgate. 

 

 

11 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME 
 

(Pages 105 - 
106) 

 To consider the Scrutiny Work Programme for 2019/20. 

 
 

12 ANY URGENT BUSINESS PREVIOUSLY AGREED WITH THE CHAIR   
 

 

 
GARY HALL  

CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Councillor 
John Walker (Chair), Councillor Roy Lees (Vice-Chair) and Councillors John  Dalton, 
Peter Gabbott, Yvonne Hargreaves, Alex Hilton, Steve Holgate, Marion Lowe, Matthew Lynch, 
June Molyneaux, Steve Murfitt, Debra Platt, Paul Sloan and Kim Snape.  
 

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or 
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk 
 
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here 
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=
doc&cat=13021&path=13021  
 

https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021
https://democracy.chorley.gov.uk/ecSDDisplay.aspx?NAME=SD852&id=852&rpid=0&sch=doc&cat=13021&path=13021


Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 26 September 2019

MINUTES OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MEETING DATE Thursday, 26 September 2019

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor John Walker (Chair), and Councillors 
John  Dalton, Peter Gabbott, Yvonne Hargreaves, 
Alex Hilton, Steve Holgate, Marion Lowe, 
June Molyneaux, Debra Platt, Paul Sloan and Kim Snape

OFFICERS: Vicky Willett (Service Lead – Transformation and 
Partnerships) Mark Lester (Director (Business, 
Development and Growth)), Portia Taylor-Black (Business 
Engagement Officer), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and 
Digital)) and Nina Neisser (Democratic and Member 
Services Officer)

APOLOGIES: Councillors Roy Lees and Matthew Lynch

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillor Adrian Lowe

19.OS.46 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 25 July 2019 of Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Decision: That the minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 25 
July 2019 be approved as a correct record for signature by the Chair.

The Chair asked if there had been an update on the Our Health Our Care Joint 
Scrutiny with South Ribble Council. Members were advised that South Ribble were 
also keen to pick this up again and following a meeting with officers at South Ribble, 
Preston City Council had been contacted to see if they wanted to be involved. LCC 
and Our Health Our Care were also informed. A further update would be provided 
once the response had been received.

19.OS.47 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest received.

19.OS.48 Public Questions

There were no public questions for consideration.

19.OS.49 Executive Cabinet Minutes

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 1 August 
2019 be noted.

Agenda Page 3 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 26 September 2019

19.OS.50 Notice of Executive Decisions

Members of the Committee considered the Notice of Executive Decisions for 
September 2019 which gave notice of key and other major decisions Executive 
Members are expected to make. The Notice is reviewed on a regular basis to ensure 
that it is up to date and fit for purpose.

19.OS.51 Health Scrutiny

Councillor Margaret France, as Chorley Council’s representative on Lancashire 
County Council’s Health Scrutiny updated Members on the recent LCC Health 
Scrutiny Steering Group meeting.

At the meeting on 24 September, the main focus was on the health service 
reorganisation with the integrated care system (ICS) and an update on Our Health Our 
Care.

At present, it was understood that there was not enough detail with regards to the 
reorganisation and the Steering Group would be asking the ICS for more information 
before they could make a formal decision. With regards to Our Health Our Care, the 
Clinical Senate had recently visited both Chorley and Preston and would be making a 
final decision on the proposals that would be moving forward. Once shortlisted, the 
proposals would be going out for public consultation.

Decision: That the update be noted.

19.OS.52 Subsidised Bus Services Update

Vicky Willett, Service Lead (Transformation and Partnerships) presented the report of 
the Director (Policy and Governance) which updated Members on the current position 
of the subsidised bus routes across the borough. Following an Executive Member 
Decision in July to continue subsidising bus routes in the borough, it was 
recommended that an update on the current subsidised services be brought to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee to review and consider the current position and the 
provision for residents in rural districts.

In July 2019, the daytime 109A daytime service was withdrawn by Stagecoach due to 
a lack of commercial viability; this had implications for the services funded by Chorley 
Council (357, 109B and 4A). Previously, bus subsidies had been reactive and cost a 
significant amount, but in this instance the Council worked with LCC to come up with a 
more viable solution that would incorporate the majority of the provision within the 
subsidised routes. The reconfigured services would deliver a replacement for the 109A 
within existing resources. The services created were the 118/119 and the 24A. As a 
result of these changes there has been a reduction of £27,000 in funding for 
subsidised bus services compared to 2018/19.

Chorley Council provided a contribution towards the delivery of the 118/119 and 24A 
services. The contribution was split with LCC; with the Council providing 25% funding 
for the day services (LCC 75%) and 75% funding (LCC 25%) for the evening services. 
The approximate cost to the Council per annum was £65,731. This was agreed 
through an Executive Member decision and funding was committed towards these 
services for a 12-month period from 1 September 2019 – 31 August 2020. 

Agenda Page 4 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 26 September 2019

The report also outlined the approximate current bus provision within the rural areas 
into the town centre and surrounding areas. Findings indicated that there were bus 
services reaching most areas of the borough, however the Council were looking for 
alternatives and ways to better use funding in rural areas such as the dial-a-ride 
service.

The Chair queried whether residents in Astley Village were happy with the new 
replacement service. It was understood that there had been initial issues, but these 
had been addressed. Following questions regarding the amount per passenger that 
was being subsidised by the council, Members were advised that calculating cost per 
passenger was complex due to the way fare data was recorded and presented by LCC 
with costs varying depending on the location and frequency of the service. Generally, 
buses are operating significantly under capacity.

Members of the Committee agreed that work needed to be done to get more people 
on the buses and discussed how a reduction in costs could achieve this. It was also 
suggested that some of the 125 services be rerouted to accommodate more residents 
in Adlington. It was subsequently agreed that Stagecoach be invited to a future 
meeting to discuss these issues and the potential solutions.

Decision: That the report be noted.

19.OS.53 Overview and Scrutiny Task Group - Roll out of Superfast Broadband - 
Monitoring of Recommendations

Mark Lester, Director for Business, Development and Growth, welcomed Portia 
Taylor-Black, Business Engagement Officer, to the meeting and presented the report 
which updated the Committee on the implementation of the recommendations made 
by the inquiry which reported to the Executive Cabinet in August 2017.

Officers had experienced difficulty in receiving any updates from LLC and BT and 
therefore the report contained the latest updates received from September 2018. It 
was agreed that officers would continue to try and get an update and a further 
monitoring report would be brought back to the Committee in March 2020.

Updates had been received internally for Chorley Council and highlighted numerous 
positives for Chorley including;

 fibre broadband for all new developments
 policy inclusion within the new local plan
 voucher schemes for SME’s to support with fibre broadband installation
 work undertaken to link to the Council’s digital agenda
 digital skills training
 the introduction of town centre and corporate/guest Wi-Fi
 plans to extend the Wi-Fi range going forward as works take place to extend 

out fibre network (e.g. towards Primrose Gardens)

Following queries regarding the take up of the digital skills training, Members were 
advised that 1041 learners attended the training in 2018/19. Members thanked Simon 
Charnock for all of his hard work in delivering these sessions. Cllr Platt also gave 
special thanks to Simon for his work in extending the Wi-Fi at Euxton Community 
Centre to ensure it was accessible throughout.

Decision – That the update be noted. 

Agenda Page 5 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 26 September 2019

19.OS.54 Reports from the Task and Finish Groups

Members of the Committee received a verbal update from Councillor Steve Holgate on 
the work undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group looking into 
Developing the Council’s Green Agenda.

At the first meeting of the Task Group which took place on 12 September, Councillor 
Paul Sloan was made Vice-Chair alongside Cllr Holgate as Chair. The Task Group 
received two presentations; one from Vicky Willett (Service Lead – Transformation and 
Partnerships) providing background and context and one from James Hoskinson 
(Local Plan Technical Officer) on the Council’s Sustainable September initiative for 
staff.

The Task Group considered the scope of the inquiry and discussed their objectives, 
outcomes, and who they wanted to interview as part of the review. The scoping 
document was drafted from this and would be a working document that would be 
brought back to each meeting.

Members of the Task Group acknowledged how big the issue of climate change was 
and therefore in order to consult with as many people as possible, the Task Group 
would split into smaller groups to interview and gather information from the 
stakeholders. Any information would then be reported back to the next meeting 
scheduled for 7 November. It was also hoped that some site visits would take place.

Following queries regarding completion of the Task Group, the Committee were 
advised that this had not yet been confirmed but it was proposed that an interim report 
be submitted prior to the consideration of the budget for 2020/21.

Decision: That the verbal updated be noted.

19.OS.55 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme

Members considered the work programme for the Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 
Performance Panel and task group topic areas for 2019/20.

The Chair highlighted the busy schedule and recognised the need to look at 
neighbourhood working and neighbourhood area meetings prior to the all-out elections 
in May 2020. It was agreed that this be discussed at the next meeting in January with 
a view to schedule an additional meeting to address this.

Decision: That the work programme be noted.

19.OS.56 Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972.

19.OS.57 Update on the New Waste and Recycling Collection Contract

Asim Khan, Director (Customer and Digital) and Councillor Adrian Lowe, Executive 
Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene Services) presented the confidential 

Agenda Page 6 Agenda Item 1



Overview and Scrutiny Committee Thursday, 26 September 2019

report which updated Members on the new waste and recycling collection contract that 
was implemented in April 2019.

The Committee were satisfied with the new service and thanked officers for all their 
work in delivering this.

Members were also reminded of the recycling changes being implemented from 1 
October which would make it easier for residents to recycle more plastic waste. 
Additional items such as clean plastic pots, tubs and food trays could also be recycled 
from this date.

Decision: That the update be noted.

Chair Date 

Agenda Page 7 Agenda Item 1



This page is intentionally left blank



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 17 October 2019

MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE Thursday, 17 October 2019

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), Councillor 
Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and 
Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Chris Sinnott (Deputy Chief 
Executive), Asim Khan (Director (Customer and 
Digital)), Mark Lester (Director (Business, Economic 
and Growth)), Chris Moister (Head of Legal, Democratic 
& HR Services), Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and 
Member Services Officer), Simon Charnock (Digital 
Transformation and Information Officer) and 
Andrew Daniels (Service Lead - Communications and 
Visitor Economy)

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillors Aaron Beaver, Mark Clifford, 
Gordon France, Roy Lees, Matthew Lynch, 
June Molyneaux, John Walker and Neville Whitham

19.EC.135 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 1 August 2019 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 20 June 
2019 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.

19.EC.136 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

19.EC.137 Public Questions

There were no public questions.

19.EC.138 Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972.

19.EC.139 Alker Lane Development

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business 

Agenda Page 9 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 17 October 2019

Development and Growth) which provides a general update on the Alker Lane 
Development, a general programme of works, and to seeks approval to undertake a 
competitive procurement exercise to appoint a consultant/contractor to design and 
undertake an intrusive site investigation.

Decision:
1. To approve the procurement of a consultant/contractor team to design and 

undertake an intrusive site investigation.
2. To approve the use of the Chest portal inviting up to four bidders to procure the 

site investigation.
3. Agree that the tender submissions for the site investigation will be evaluated on 

a 70% price/30% quality matrix.
4. That the site investigation contract award be delegated to the Executive 

Member (Resources).
5. Acknowledge the proposed timeline for the bringing forward of the site 

development.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
To progress the delivery of the Alker Lane Development.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
To leave the requirements to undertake a site investigation to the contractor who 
undertakes the detailed design and build for the development. This would not expedite 
the delivery of this site. Completing the site investigation now will also assist with the 
works associated with the relocation of the watermain.

19.EC.140 Central Lancashire Local Plan Approval to Consult Issues and Options

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Deputy Chief Executive 
which presents the Central Lancashire Local Plan Issues and Options Consultation 
Paper for approval alongside details of the consultation methods and programme. 

Decision:
1. To approve the Central Lancashire Issues and Options Paper in Appendix One 

as written, as the first stage in the preparation of the new Central Lancashire 
Local Plan, in accordance with Regulation 18 of The Town and Country 
Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

2. To approve for publication and consultation Annex 1 (relevant to Chorley 
Borough) ‘Site Suggestions Proposed by Chorley Council’.

3. To approve for publication and consultation Annex 2 (relevant to Chorley 
Borough) ‘Chorley Council Elected Members Comments on Site Suggestions’.

4. To approve for publication and consultation Annex 5 (relevant to Chorley 
Borough) ‘All Site Submissions Received for Chorley ‘.

5. To approve for publication and consultation Annex 6 (relevant to Chorley 
Borough) - ‘Proposed Changes to Town, District and Local Centre Boundaries’.

6. To approve Annex 7 (relevant to Chorley Borough) ‘Strategic Housing and 
Economic Land Availability Assessment Methodology Statement Iteration 1 - 
April 2019’.

7. To accept and approve the document as drafted (subject to any misinformation 
or fundamental errors) recognising that to make any changes at this stage 
would delay the subsequent approval of the final version as the same version 
must be approved by all three councils.

Agenda Page 10 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 17 October 2019

8. To approve the proposed methods of consultation including the online portal 
Citizenspace, and the programme for drop-in events and elected member 
learning sessions.

9. To approve the key timetable for the consultation commencing on Monday 18th 
November 2019 at 12.01am and closing at 11.59pm on Friday 14th February 
2020.

10.To agree to the commencement of the consultation upon the approval by all 
three Central Lancashire councils including Preston and South Ribble (subject 
to any call-in period).

11.To delegate responsibility for agreeing any format and layout changes and 
minor amends to the Portfolio Holder and Deputy Chief Executive/Director of 
Early Intervention and Support.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. The preparation of a new Local (Development) Plan is now required across 

Central Lancashire as the existing Core Strategy adopted in 2012, is more than 
five years old. This Issues and Options consultation is the first stage towards 
the preparation of a new Local Plan, which considers the challenges and 
opportunities arising from the evidence collected to inform the new Local Plan, 
whilst also taking account of wider national policy objectives, priorities and 
strategy.

2. This new Local Plan must be prepared in accordance with The Town and 
County Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 and the first 
stage is referred to as Regulation 18 under which, we will be preparing the 
Issues and Options Document, and the next planned consultation which will be 
the Preferred Options, expected in late 2020/21.

3. There is a strategic rationale for the three councils of Preston, Chorley and 
South Ribble working collaboratively to produce a single Local Plan, as a single 
housing market area, and functional economic market area with evidence to 
support high levels of spatial self - containment.

4. There are efficiencies to be gained by working collectively as plan-making is 
resource intensive and the MHCLG have provided funding to Central Lancs to 
work together in plan preparation.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.

19.EC.141 Allocation of Community Infrastructure Levy Funds - Whittle GP Surgery 
Development

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business 
Development and Growth) which seeks approval for the allocation of Strategic CIL 
monies to develop the proposed Whittle GP Surgery at 239 Preston Road, Clayton-Le-
Woods.

Decision:
1. To approve the allocation of community infrastructure levy monies (50% of the 

build cost) to the Whittle GP surgery development project.
2. To note the total cost of construction (including PCSA costs). More detailed 

costings will be available in the coming weeks and a request will be made to 
Full Council on 19 November to increase the current budget already included in 
the approved capital programme.

Agenda Page 11 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 17 October 2019

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. To allocate the CIL infrastructure fund in the way it is intended and ensure the 

methodology of how it is allocated is transparent.
2. To support the delivery of the Whittle GP Surgery development to allow the 

relocation of staff and patients from the current Whittle Surgery.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
The full development be funded through public loan monies. This would require a 
borrowing schedule over a minimum of 25 years and would not make allowance for 
any maintenance costs for the life of the building, when calculated against the rent to 
be paid by the NHS. The development supports the intended use of CIL allocation.

19.EC.142 112-114 Market Street, Chorley

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business 
Development and Growth) concerning the provision of a discount on long stay parking 
permits for 112-113 Market Street. 

Decision:
1. To approve a discount on long stay parking permits.
2. To approve delegated authority to the Director (Business Development and 

Growth) be given to finalise details of the agreement. 

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
The provision of this support will retain the business within the borough of Chorley. It 
will also increase town centre footfall, bring a prominent vacant building back into use.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
Not recommending this support could see them leave Chorley for another borough.

19.EC.143 Website Review and Refresh

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential 
report of the Director (Policy and Governance) which provides an overview of work 
that has taken place so far on the website refresh project as well as outlining options 
to progress the project. 

Decision:
1. Review options put forward for the website refresh project and approve the 

scope of works.
2. Agree to a joint procurement process for a Content Management System 

(CMS) with South Ribble Borough Council with SRBC acting as the lead body.
3. Agree the procurement route for the project, namely for the lead body to 

request and obtain a waiver of Contract Procedure Rules to allow a direct 
award to the provider offering the most economically advantageous solution 
following completion of market engagement, as opposed to carrying out a 
procurement exercise through the chest.

4. Agree budget for the project based on indicative costings already received from 
various platform providers. Indicative costs for the CMS license, 
implementation, ongoing hosting, maintenance, and training range from 
£100,000 - £229,900 over 3 years and £160,000 to £320,700 over 5 years. 

Agenda Page 12 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 17 October 2019

These figures will be split across Chorley Council and South Ribble Council 
50/50.

5. Note the intention to review and the potential financial implications of resolving 
issues with self-service portals for specified services with a view to integrating 
them into our current in house developed MyAccount solution to resolve issues 
with single sign on and multiple account requirements for users.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. A new Content Management System will be the enabler for further change and 

transformation, allowing our users to access information and online services at 
a time and place that suits them, allowing for efficiency savings to be made by 
the reduction in the more expensive channels of face to face and telephone 
contact.

2. A new website and review of our online services will support the delivery of the 
Council’s Digital and ICT strategies and will help to improve the services we 
offer to customers as well as allowing for the aspiration of channel shift to be 
achieved.

3. A shared platform and procurement with SRBC will be a financial benefit for 
both authorities by sharing the cost of a solution, as well as being part of future 
aspirations for further shared services.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

1. On commencement of the project we carried out user research with Internal 
users to understand our current solution capabilities to consider if our current 
solution could be retained. From the user research we rejected the retention of 
our current CMS solution due to its capability restrictions.

2. Replacement of the internally developed MyAccount solution was also 
considered. However, similar to the above, user research allowed us to gain an 
understanding that the MyAccount solution is fully customisable and Chorley 
Council ICT developers have full control over the system, meaning it can be 
amended as required to meet user needs.

3. Indicative costs from CMS providers have been received by Chorley Council 
individually. There was initially consideration of a sole Chorley Council platform 
and procurement. However, understanding that SRBC are undertaking the 
same work with the same scope it became clear if was a financial benefit to 
each authority to share a platform and procurement.

19.EC.144 Approval to Procure Grounds Maintenance Plant & Equipment

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential 
report of the Director (Customer & Digital) which seeks approval for the procurement 
of grounds maintenance equipment at the most economically advantageous option for 
the council.

Decision:
1. To approve the procurement of four mowers. Tenders will be evaluated to 

establish the most economically advantageous tender based on 75% cost, 25% 
quality.

2. That the award of the contract be delegated to the Executive Member for 
Resources for approval based on the evaluation criteria.

Reasons for Recommendation(s):

Agenda Page 13 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 17 October 2019

Under the council’s contract procedure rules approval by the Executive Cabinet of 
contract award procedures and evaluation criteria for tenders greater than £100,000 in 
value is required.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:

1. To extend the current lease arrangements during 2020/21, likely to cause 
additional costs for maintenance and repair and issues with reliability.

2. To not agree the contract award procedure would fail to comply with the 
Council’s Procurement rules.

19.EC.145 90 Railway Road Adlington Chorley PR6 9RB

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential 
report of the Director (Business Development and Growth) which seeks approval of 
the provisionally agreed terms for the grant of a new 25-year lease of 90 Railway 
Road Adlington to Buckshaw Bunnies Childcare Ltd.

Decision:
1. To grant a 25-year lease to Buckshaw Bunnies Childcare Ltd. on the terms set 

out in the report.
2. To seek authority to issue instructions to the Chief Legal Officer for the 

completion of a Lease. 

Reasons for Recommendation(s):
1. The grant of the lease will bring the premises back into economic use and 

provide nursery provision for the local residents
2. The responsibility for the refurbishment, repair and ongoing maintenance 

liability will rest with the tenant

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected:
None.

19.EC.146 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair

Chair Date 

Agenda Page 14 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

MINUTES OF EXECUTIVE CABINET

MEETING DATE Thursday, 14 November 2019

MEMBERS PRESENT: Councillor Alistair Bradley (Chair), Councillor 
Peter Wilson (Vice-Chair) and Councillors 
Beverley Murray, Graham Dunn, Alistair Morwood and 
Adrian Lowe

OFFICERS: Gary Hall (Chief Executive), Mark Lester (Director 
(Business, Economic and Growth)), Chris Moister 
(Head of Legal, Democratic & HR Services), 
Philippa Braithwaite (Democratic and Member Services 
Officer), Rebecca Aziz-Brook (Transformation 
Programme Coordinator), Andrew Daniels (Service 
Lead - Communications and Visitor Economy) and 
Rachel Salter (Strategic Development Officer)

OTHER MEMBERS: Councillors Aaron Beaver, Eric Bell, Mark Clifford, 
Gordon France, Margaret France, Tom Gray, 
Yvonne Hargreaves and Steve Holgate

19.EC.147 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 17 October 2019 of Executive Cabinet

Decision: That the minutes of the Executive Cabinet meeting held on 17 October 
2019 be confirmed as a correct record for signature by the Executive Leader.

19.EC.148 Declarations of Any Interests

There were no declarations of interest.

19.EC.149 Public Questions

There were no public questions.

19.EC.150 Cowling Farm

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the report of the Director (Business Development and 
Growth) which provides an update on the current progress of delivering an 
employment and gypsy and traveller (G & T) site at Cowling Farm, and presents the 
options available to deliver the G & T allocation. 

Members noted the G & T family’s comments regarding proximity to employment and 
residential sites and the Leader advised that Homes England had now submitted an 

Agenda Page 15 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

application for their site rather than continuing to work collaboratively with the Council. 
Members expressed their disappointment and noted that the Leader had written to 
Homes England to express the Council’s concerns. It was agreed that waiting for a 
response before deciding on which option to pursue would be preferable, and in the 
meantime both options 1 and 2 should be investigated further. 

Decision:
1. That options 1 and 2 be considered further by officers with greater detail to be 

provided to Members at another meeting. 
2. To request the Leader to urge Homes England to respond to his recent letter. 
3. To note that Officers will continue to look at the feasibility of delivering 

residential and a gypsy and traveller (G & T) allocation on the Chorley land 
rather than employment and a G & T allocation.

Reasons for Recommendation(s): 
To progress the delivery of the G & T site and to progress the delivery of the wider site 
with a use that is financially viable.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
1. To continue to progress with the employment development has been rejected 

as it is unviable.
2. Delivery of the G & T site with the wider site development has been rejected as 

it will not deliver the G & T allocation within the required timescales.

19.EC.151 Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring 2019/20 Report 2

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the 
Chief Finance Officer which sets out the provisional revenue and capital outturn 
figures for the Council as compared against the budgets and efficiency savings targets 
set for the financial year 2019/20. 

Members noted that the forecast of capital expenditure in 2019/20 was £53.691m and 
the forecast level of balances at 31 March 2020 will be £4m. Members discussed the 
reserves in place for expanding shared services and noted that the 2019/20 in year 
underspends would be used to fund Chorley Council’s share of the forecast costs.
 
Decision:

1. Note the full year forecast position for the 2019/20 revenue budget and capital 
investment programme.

2. Note the forecast position on the Council's reserves.
3. Request Council note the capital programme to be delivered in 2019/20 to 

2021/22 and to approve the adjustments outlined in the report.

Reasons for Recommendation(s): 
To ensure the Council’s budgetary targets are achieved.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
None.

19.EC.152 Quarter 2 Performance Report 2019/20

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the report of the 
Director (Policy & Governance) which sets out the performance against the delivery of 

Agenda Page 16 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

the Corporate Strategy and key performance indicators during the second quarter of 
2019/20, 1 July to 30 September 2019.

Overall, performance of key projects is excellent, with 11 (92%) of the projects now 
rated as green or complete and one (8%) project currently rated as amber with the 
action plan for this project contained within this report. Performance of the Corporate 
Strategy indicators and key service delivery measures is also excellent with 100% of 
Corporate Strategy measures and 88% of key service delivery measures performing 
on or above target or within the 5% threshold. Those indicators performing below 
target, including bin collections, have action plans outlined with measures to improve 
performance. 

In addition, this quarter the 2019 Indices of Multiple Deprivation (IMD) update was 
released by the Ministry of Housing Communities and Local Government. The overall 
message for Chorley is positive with the borough now less deprived than it was in 
2015 and Members noted the evidence behind these figures was being used to 
understand and address the issues.  

Decision: 
To note the report. 

Reasons for Recommendation(s): 
To facilitate the on-going analysis and management of the Council’s performance in 
delivering the Corporate Strategy.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
None.

19.EC.153 Exclusion of the Public and Press

Decision: To exclude the press and public for the following items of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972.

19.EC.154 Tatton Project

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), presented the confidential report of the Director (Business, 
Development & Growth) which present the feasibility study and masterplan options for 
the demolition of the former bus depot off Eaves Lane and Tatton community centre to 
allow the development of a new community centre, GP surgery and pharmacy and 
residential assisted living apartments.

Decision: 
1. To approve masterplan Option D for the Tatton Development.
2. To approve the progression of the further works identified in the report 

maintaining the professional services of the appointed consultant to progress 
the next stage of feasibility works.

3. To acknowledge that the further works will be funded through the remaining 
One Public Estate Funding, with any deficit being funded through the income 
generation reserve.

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

Reasons for Recommendation(s): 
1. Following a review of the masterplan options, Officers have brought forward 

masterplan option D as the recommended scheme for the Tatton development.
2. Option D provides an Assisted Living Unit containing 59 apartments and 12 

residential properties, GP Surgery and Pharmacy, new Community Centre and 
improvements to the Tatton recreation ground.

3. The proposal promotes the use of space by combining the Assisted Living Unit 
with both the GP Surgery/Pharmacy and Community Centre into the same 
extended footprint.

4. The proposal provides 12 low-rise residential properties to the northern end of 
the site, which will provide natural surveillance for the park area.

5. The proposal provides improvements to recreational facilities for the local 
residents.

6. The proposal will reduce anti-social behaviour within the area by developing a 
scheme that compliments the surrounding area. The assisted living will offer 
24hr surveillance to the park and community centre.

7. Maintaining the current consultant team will allow continuity of the design 
works.

8. The consultant team to date have provided a value for money high quality 
service.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
1. Masterplan Option A – rejected as the community centre and GP surgery 

separated from the assisted living could be open to ongoing vandalism. 
2. Masterplan Option B – rejected as the community centre separated from the 

assisted living and GP Surgery could be open to ongoing vandalism. The 
proposed residential properties take too much of the park/green space.

3. Do nothing – rejected as this will not deliver the councils corporate objectives.

19.EC.155 Review of Management Accountancy Service

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential 
report of the Director (Policy & Governance) which briefs Members on the outcome of 
the review of, and amendments to, the existing shared services for finance between 
South Ribble Borough Council and Chorley Borough Council.

Decision: 
1. To note the consultation responses given in Appendix 1.
2. To note the changes to the structure given in original report that was approved 

at Full Council on 25 October 2019. These changes address some of the issues 
outlined in the consultation responses.

3. To approve the final structure for a Shared Management Accountants team. 

Reasons for Recommendation(s): 
A review of shared services, operational structures and staff development will ensure 
that both councils are supported by a finance team that has the appropriate tools to 
deliver a best practice service in the most efficient and effective manner.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
None.

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 4



Executive Cabinet Thursday, 14 November 2019

19.EC.156 Review of Financial Systems and Exchequer Service

Councillor Peter Wilson, Executive Member (Resources), presented the confidential 
report of the Director (Policy & Governance) which briefs Members on the review of, 
and amendments to, the existing shared services for finance between South Ribble 
Borough Council and Chorley Borough Council. 

Decision: 
To approve the changes to the Financial Systems and Exchequer Services outlined in 
the report that were approved by Shared Services Joint Committee on 9 September 
and by Full Council at both Chorley and South Ribble Councils in September 2019. No 
further changes have been made to the report since this approval was given.

Reasons for Recommendation(s): 
A review of shared services, operational structures and staff development will ensure 
that both councils are supported by a finance team that has the appropriate tools to 
deliver a best practice service in the most efficient and effective manner.

Alternative Options Considered and Rejected: 
None.

19.EC.157 Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair

Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Member (Economic Development and Public 
Service Reform), briefed Members on recent staffing appointments, and no objections 
were raised.

Chair Date 

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Chorley Council – Notice of Executive Decisions  
 

1. This document gives 28 days notice of ‘key’ and other major decisions which the Executive Cabinet and Executive Members expect to take.  The 
document is updated as required and is available to the public on the Council’s website at www.chorley.gov.uk or from the Town Hall, Market Street, 
Chorley, PR7 1DP. 

 

2. A ‘Key’ Decision is defined as: 
a) Any executive decision which is likely to result in the Council incurring significant expenditure or the making of savings where there is: 

 a change in service provision that impacts upon the service revenue budget by £100,000 or more; or 

 a contract worth £100,000 or more; or 

 a new or unprogrammed capital scheme of £100,000 or more. 
b) Any executive decision which will have a significant impact in environmental, physical, social or economic terms on communities living or working 

in two or more electoral wards.  This includes any plans or strategies which are not within the meaning of the Council’s Policy Framework set out 
in Article 4 of the Council’s Constitution. 

c) Under the Access to Information Procedure Rules set out in the Council’s Constitution, a ‘Key’ Decision may not be taken, unless 28 days notice 
have been given in this document; 

d) The law and the Council’s Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made, even though they have not been included in this document in 
accordance with General Exception and Special Urgency provisions. 

 

3. The Executive Cabinet is made up of the Executive Leader, Deputy Leader and four Executive Members with the following portfolios: 
Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Service 
Reform) 

Councillor Alistair Bradley  

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources) Councillor Peter Wilson  
Executive Member (Early Intervention) Councillor Beverley Murray 
Acting Executive Member (Homes and Housing) Councillor Graham Dunn  
Executive Member (Public Protection) Councillor Alistair Morwood  
Executive Member (Customer, Advice and Streetscene Services) Councillor Adrian Lowe 

 

4.  Copies of the Council’s Constitution and agenda and minutes for all meetings of the Council may be accessed on the Council’s website: 
www.chorley.gov.uk.  If there are any queries, including objections to items being considered in private, please contact the Council on 01257 515151 
or email contact@chorley.gov.uk.  Please note representations should be received 14 days before the date the decision is due to be taken.   

 

Gary Hall, Chief Executive 
Last updated: 15 January 2020 

A
genda P

age 21
A

genda Item
 5

http://www.chorley.gov.uk/
http://www.chorley.gov.uk/
mailto:contact@chorley.gov.uk


Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key 

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

 

Future meetings of the Executive Cabinet where there is an intention to hold part of a meeting in private: 16 January, 13 February and 12 March 
2020 
 

January 
 

Draft budget 
2020/21 and 
summary 
position over 
the medium 
term 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

16 Jan 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Statutory 
Finance Officer 
 

Review of Fees 
& Charges 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 16 Jan 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub- 
Grant of Leases 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 16 Jan 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Commercial 
Services) 
 

Community 
Resilience 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

 16 Jan 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

A
genda P

age 22
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Whittle GP 
Surgery 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

16 Jan 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
38, 39 40 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

16 Jan 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 23
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

LCC service 
changes 
affecting Home 
Improvement 
Agency service 
delivery 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Homes and 
Housing) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

16 Jan 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

Future meetings 
 

King George V 
Playing Fields, 
Adlington 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

13 Feb 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Cowling Farm 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

13 Feb 2020 No 
 

Details can be 
found here: 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/s
105081/Cowling
%20Farm.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 24
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Open Space, 
Sport & 
Recreation 
Strategy 
Summary and 
Action Plan 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 13 Feb 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Allocation of 
Community 
Infrastructure 
Levy Funds 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 13 Feb 2020 No 
 

Details can be 
found here: 
https://chorley.g
ov.uk/Documen
ts/Interim%20In
frastructure%20
Funding%20Sta
tement%20201
9-20.pdf 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

Revenue and 
Capital Budget 
Monitoring 
2019/20 
Quarter 3 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

13 Feb 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Statutory 
Finance Officer 
 

Quarter 3 
Performance 
Report 2019/20 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 13 Feb 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

A
genda P

age 25
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Updated 
Shared 
Services 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 13 Feb 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

Key 
Partnerships 
Update 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 13 Feb 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

Council 
Chamber 
project - 
Contract Award 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

13 Feb 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

A
genda P

age 26
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Westway 
Pavillion 
Contractor 
Appointment 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

13 Feb 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Overview and 
Scrutiny Task 
Group - 
Developing the 
Council's Green 
Agenda 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 12 Mar 2020 No 
 

Details can be 
found here: 
https://democra
cy.chorley.gov.
uk/documents/g
7227/Printed%2
0minutes%2025
th-Jul-
2019%2018.30
%20Overview%
20and%20Scrut
iny%20Committ
ee.pdf?T=1 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

A
genda P

age 27
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Procurement of 
IT Equipment 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 12 Mar 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Streetscene 
Modernisation 
Strategy 2020-
2023 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Customer, 
Advice and 
Streetscene 
Services) 

 18 Jun 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Quarter 4 
Performance 
Report 2019/20 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 18 Jun 2020  
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Deputy Chief 
Executive 
 

Provisional 
Revenue and 
Capital Outturn 
2019/20 
 

Executive 
Cabinet 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

18 Jun 2020  
 

 
 

Report of the  
Statutory 
Finance Officer 
 

A
genda P

age 28
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Executive Member Decisions 
 

Executive Leader and Executive Member (Economic Development and Public Services Reform) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Grant 
Programme 
Amendment 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Milestone 
Meadow Play 
Area, Euxton 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Westway 
Operator 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 29
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree 
Steelwork 
Modification on 
Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Alker Lane 
Bridge 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A change in 
service 
provision that 
impacts upon 
the service 
revenue budget 
by £100,000 or 
more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 30
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Westway 
Football 
Foundation 
Submission 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Approval of the 
Central 
Lancashire 
Local 
Development 
Scheme 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 February 2020 No 
 

Details can be 
found here: 
https://centrallo
calplan.lancashi
re.gov.uk/ 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

Deputy Executive Leader and Executive Member (Resources) 
 

A
genda P

age 31
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval for the 
contact award 
procedure for 
the 
procurement of 
asset 
management 
software for 
streetscene 
services 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Harrisons Farm 
Adlington - 
Notification of 
United Utilities 
Works under 
S159 of the 
Water Industry 
Act 1991 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Application to 
Waive Council 
Tax Long Term 
Empty Premium 
- Andertons 
School House 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 32
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Application to 
Waive Council 
Tax Long-Term 
Empty Premium 
- 5 Martins 
Avenue 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Common Bank 
Lane Disposal 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Approval For 
Car Park 
Barrier Bengal 
Street 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 No 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Croft Lodge, 
Lodge Bank, 
Brinscall - 
Fishing Lease 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 33
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Bengal Street - 
Appointment of 
Consultant to 
undertake 
Feasibility 
Study 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Disposal of 3 
Parking Spaces 
at Farrington 
Street Car Park 
Chorley 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 34
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Land Rear of 50 
and 52 Fairview 
Drive Adlington 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
2, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 35
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
3, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
4, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 36
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Approval to 
Agree Heads of 
Terms for Unit 
5, Market Walk 
Extension 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Whittle Surgery 
Procurement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 37
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Town Hall 
Boiler 
Replacement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Unit 30 Market 
Walk - Lease 
Renewal - 
Game 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 38
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Grant of a 
Lease - 37 New 
Market Street - 
First Floor 
Above Iceland - 
Market Walk 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Disposal of land 
at Cunnery 
Meadow 
Clayton le 
Woods 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 39
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Letting 
Arrangements - 
Hair Salon - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Grant of a 
Lease - Cafe - 
Primrose 
Gardens 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 40
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Alker Lane - 
Appointment of 
ecological 
consultants 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Alker Lane - 
Appointment of 
project 
management, 
design and 
planning 
support 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 41
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 2 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 3 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 42
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 4 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 5 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 43
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 6 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 7 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 44
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 8 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 9 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 45
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 10 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 11 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 46
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 14 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 15 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 47
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 16 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 17 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 48
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 18 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 19 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 49
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 20 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 22 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 50
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 23 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 24 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 51
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 25 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 26 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 52
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Strawberry 
Fields Digital 
Office Hub - 
Grant of a 
Lease - Office 
No 27 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Chorley BIG 
Grant 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 53
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Alker Lane - 
Site 
Investigation 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Economic 
Development 
and Public 
Service 
Reform) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Mutual 
agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 1: 
Information 
relating to any 
individual. 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Chief Executive 
 

Council 
Chamber 
furniture and 
technology 
review - 
contract award 
procedure 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

A
genda P

age 54
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Lease of Cafe 
Coach House 
Astley Park 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Proposed 
Wayleave 
Agreement: 
Harrisons Farm, 
Old School 
Lane, Adlington 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

A
genda P

age 55
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Award of 
Contract 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Busness, 
Development 
and Growth) 
 

Award of 
Contract - 
Procurement of 
Grounds 
Maintenance 
Equipment 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

A
genda P

age 56
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Farmhouse 
Lease 
Agreement 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

 January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Policy 
and 
Governance) 
 

Website Review 
Contract Award 
 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

Executive 
Member 
(Resources) 

A contract 
worth £100,000 
or more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director 
(Customer and 
Digital) 
 

Executive Member (Early Intervention) 
 

A
genda P

age 57
A

genda Item
 5



 
Details of the 
Decision to be 
taken 

Decision to be 
taken by 

Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Reason the 
decision is key  

Earliest Date 
decision can 
be taken 

Will the public 
be excluded?  

Are there any 
background 
papers? 

Documents to 
be considered 
by Decision 
taker 

Investment and 
improvements 
at Duxbury Park 
Community 
Facilities 
 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

Executive 
Member (Early 
Intervention) 

A new or 
unprogrammed 
capital scheme 
of £100,000 or 
more 

January 2020 Paragraph 3: 
Information 
relating to the 
financial or 
business affairs 
of any particular 
person 
(including the 
authority 
holding that 
information). 
 

No 
 

Report of the  
Director (Early 
Intervention and 
Support) 
 

A
genda P

age 58
A

genda Item
 5



 

 

 

 

 
Report of Meeting Date 

Chief Finance Officer 
(Introduced by the Executive 

Member for Resources) 

Executive Cabinet  16 January 2020 

 

2020/21 DRAFT BUDGET AND SUMMARY BUDGET POSITION 

OVER THE MEDIUM TERM 

 

PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 

1. To set out the budget position for 2020/21 including the forecast for the following 2 years to 
2022/23 and also present the relevant proposals in respect of: 

• The use of forecast resources identified in 2020/21 

• Budget consultation 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. That Members agree the contents of this report in order to start the budget consultation 
process and note the following proposed budget items, in particular: 

• No proposed increase in council tax for 2020/21 and no proposed cuts to 
services 

• The forecast balanced budget for 2020/21 and the forecast budget position in 
2021/22 and 2022/23 

• The changes to the capital programme 2020/21 to 2022/23  

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 
 

3. The budget forecasts over the next 3 years have been updated to take account of the following: 

• Due to the investments made by the Council and the efficiencies achieved, there 
is no proposed increase in council tax in 2020/21 

• There is no proposed increase in council tax in 2021/22 or 2022/23, this will be 
revisited every year and will be dependent upon the outcome of the Government 
announcements regarding the Fair Funding Review and Business Rates 
Retention. 

• Continued investment of approximately £1m that will deliver corporate strategy 
priorities 

• Strategies to reduce the budget deficit in the medium term 

4. Consultation on the proposed budget for 2020/21 will commence following approval of the 
proposals by Executive Cabinet. The consultation will invite responses from residents, 
partners, parish groups and other stakeholders through a variety of methods including a short 
survey (available both in hard copy and online). Results will be analysed and published in 
February for consideration as part of budget finalisation  

 

Agenda Page 59 Agenda Item 6



 

 
Spending Round 2019 and Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 
 

5. 2019-20 was due to be the final year of the Government’s four-year Settlement, however 
following the Spending Round 2019, councils will receive a further one-year Settlement as the 
planned changes from the Fair Funding Review and 75% Business Rates retention have been 
delayed by at least one year until April 2021 at the earliest. Budget assumptions have been 
made based on the Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement that was announced on 
24 December 2019. 

 
Business Rates 
 
6. Chorley Council benefited in 2019/20 from being a member of the Lancashire 75% business 

rates pilot. The spending round 2019 announced that all 75% pilots will be disbanded. The 
budget assumes that in 2020/21 the council will revert to membership of the Lancashire 
business rates pool as per the guidance from Government. 

 
7. Forecasting levels of business rates beyond 2020/21 remains complicated due to uncertainty 

regarding the quantum of business rates that will remain when the system is reset. The date 
of this reset is still uncertain, this budget assumes it will take place on April 2021. The level of 
business rates retained by Chorley Council under the new system will also depend on the 
outcome of the fair funding review. This review will set new baseline funding allocations for all 
Local Authorities and aims to simplify the existing system and provide an up to date 
assessment of Authorities relative needs and resources. Early consultations have taken place 
by MHCLG, but there is insufficient information to make informed estimates to date.  

 

New Homes Bonus 
 
8. The spending review announced a gradual reduction and ultimate removal of New Homes 

Bonus. Government proposals are for allocations to reduce as follows: 

• 2020/21 – 4 year allocation - for Chorley Council approximately £2.3m 

• 2021/22 – 2 year allocation - for Chorley Council approximately £1.1m 

• 2022/23 – 1 year allocation - for Chorley Council approximately £550k 
 

Council Tax 
 
9. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement announced a council tax referendum 

principle of up to 3% in 2019/20. No announcement has been made regarding future years. 
 
10. Chorley borough has experienced expansion of housing over the past few years. 

 

 
2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

2020/21 
Estimate 

New Band D equivalent 
dwellings brought in base 

1,259 677 751 680 520 434 

Growth (year-on-year) 3.8% 2.0% 2.1% 1.89% 1.42% 1.20% 

Additional council tax 
income to CBC each year  

£223k £120k £133k £123k £97k £83k 

 

11. The council expects a gradual slowdown in house building over the coming three years 
however there are still sites coming forward. An average 1.5% expansion of the base is 
forecast in 2021/22 onwards.  

FUNDING 

Agenda Page 60 Agenda Item 6



 
 

12. The chart above outlines the forecast level of funding across the next three years in 
comparison to previous allocations. Retained business rates are forecast to reduce in 21/22 
when the Fair Funding Review and reset are forecast to be implemented. This is a cautious 
but necessary assumption given the uncertainty surrounding the new system. 

 
 
 
 
  

6.24 6.50 6.82 7.13 7.19 7.29 7.40

4.38 4.38
4.39

5.02 4.42 3.94 3.94

4.46 4.01 2.99

2.79
2.35

1.12 0.55

1.01 0.93

1.40
0.73

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

16/17 17/18 18/19 19/20 20/21 21/22 22/23

£
 m

ill
io

n
Major Sources of Council Funding

Revenue Support Grant

Income from LCC

New Homes Bonus

Retained Business Rates

Council Tax

Agenda Page 61 Agenda Item 6



 
Pay Award 
 

13. An average 2% pay increase per year has been assumed for 2020/21 to 2022/23. However, 
Unions are strongly supporting a 10 per cent pay increase and a £10 minimum hourly rate 
claim for local government workers in England, Wales and Northern Ireland for the year starting 
April 2020. Every 1% increase in pay results in over £100k of additional expenditure to Chorley 
Council.  

 
14. There has been a recent announcement from Government that the national living wage will 

increase by 6.2% in 2020/21. This will not affect Chorley Council’s pay bands for 2020/21 as 
the council pays above this level already. 

 
Pensions 
 

15. As part of a triennial pension review the Lancashire County Pension Fund announced an 
increase in employer pension contributions for 2020/21 to 2022/23 to meet the future costs of 
the scheme. The contributions have increased from 14.4% to 16.4% resulting in an increase 
in the council’s contribution. This is lower than the 17.1% assumed in the previous year’s 
budget. 

 

16. The Lancashire County Pension Fund has outperformed most local authority pension funds 
over the past 3 years. Looking forward the pension fund has provided figures that forecast 
Chorley Council’s contribution to the prior year deficit will reduce by approximately £500k, 
reducing the council’s budgeted contributions by over £1.5m over the next three years. 

 
Brexit 
 

17. Concerns remain about the impact of the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the European 
Union (BREXIT). Much speculation continues around the likely financial effects of this but it is 
clear that continued uncertainty has presented significant issues across the economy and the 
stock market. The potential risks to the Council include changes to interest rates and inflation, 
a slowdown in the local economy affecting rental and property values and income from retained 
business rates. The council set aside a reserve of £300k to mitigate the impact that the UK 
leaving the EU could have on local businesses and Corporate Priorities. These risks will be 
closely monitored and reported throughout the period of the MTFS. 

  

EXPENDITURE 

Agenda Page 62 Agenda Item 6



 

18. The council’s gross budget deficit is summarised in table 1 and is based upon the reductions 
in funding described above and the following key budget assumptions. It should be noted that 
some of the assumptions are still potentially subject to change that may impact positively or 
negatively on the budget. 

 

Table 1: Cumulative Gross Budget Deficit as at January 2020 
 

hllj 
2020/21 

£m 
2021/22 

£m 
2022/23 

£m 

Gross Budget Deficit 0.349 2.392 3.285 

 
19. All deficits and savings identified in the table 1 and in the remainder of this report are 

cumulative. For example the deficit of £3.285m in 2022/23 identified above is the result of a 
£2.392m deficit in 2021/22 and further budget pressures of £0.893m identified for 2022/223.  

 

 
 

Key Assumptions   2020/21 2021/22 2022/23 

Growth in Council Tax 
Base 

  1.20% 1.50% 1.50% 

Growth in Retained Business Rates 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

New Homes Bonus Baseline Adjustment 0.40% 0.40% 0.40% 

Total Forecast New Homes Bonus  £2.346m £1.125m £0.550m 

Future Service Pension 
Rate 

  16.40% 16.40% 16.40% 

Income from LCC   £0.096m £0.096m £0.096m 

Pension Fund Deficit Recovery  £0.441m £0.458m £0.476m 

Pay Award  2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 

 

20. A detailed breakdown of the 3 year budget including the gross budget deficit is provided in 
Appendix 1. Included in this appendix are the revenue budget implications regarding the 
Council’s large capital projects, as with other assumptions it should be noted that the profile of 
expenditure and income is potentially subject to change. Risks surrounding these budget 
assumptions will be managed using general and earmarked reserves as outlined at the end of 
this report. 

  

BUDGET DEFICIT 

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 6



 
21. Funding to Chorley Council has fallen from over £17m in 2016/17 to a forecast figure of under 

£12m by 2022/23. During this period the council continued to experience inflationary increases 
in staff and non-staff budgets. However, the council has been ambitious in its approach to 
meeting the budget deficit through generating efficiency savings and additional income.  

 
22. The council has been successful in keeping its costs down whilst continuing to provide the high 

quality services expected from its residents. The council achieves this by continually reviewing 
its budgets and contracts. Over £1m saving was achieved through the tender of the waste 
contract in 2019/20 and further savings are forecast for the tender of its leisure centre 
management contract. Staff structures are reviewed to ensure the council remains efficient in 
the delivery of the corporate priorities throughout the borough. Staffing efficiencies of over £1m 
have been achieved since 2014/15 with further savings expected through the council’s 
commitment to explore and invest in alternative delivery models, including sharing more 
services with South Ribble Borough Council.  

 
23. The council will continue to invest within Chorley borough to generate income and therefore 

make the council less reliant on the increasingly uncertain funding from Government. It is an 
exciting time for the council and its residents as several key investment projects are complete 
and are now open. These investments not only provide income to the council but also provide 
key services to residents and promote local jobs and businesses. 

 
Table 2: Balancing the Budget in 2020/21 

 

hllj 
2020/21 

£m 
2021/22 

£m 
2022/23 

£m 

Gross Budget Deficit 0.349 2.392 3.285 

Efficiency Savings    

Shared Services (0.115) (0.201) (0.201) 

Income Generation    

Market Walk Extension Net Income (0.250) (0.280) (0.280) 

Primrose Retirement Net Income (0.084) (0.104) (0.111) 

Strawberry Fields Net Income 0.000 (0.150) (0.150) 

Logistics House Net Income (0.450) (0.450) (0.450) 

Create TVS Income Reserve 0.450 0.000 0.000 

    

Net Deficit/(Available Resources) (0.100) 1.206 2.093 

  

BALANCING THE BUDGET IN 2020/21 

Agenda Page 64 Agenda Item 6



24. On 17 September 2019 Full Council approved the first phase of proposals to extend shared 
services with South Ribble Borough Council. This established seven shared senior posts with 
six of these posts now recruited to. In April 2020 phase one will be developed further with more 
efficiencies expected, the expected savings to Chorley Council from phase one are included 
in table 2. Both councils will begin developing further joint strategies through a shared board 
and develop a business case for the second phase of shared services. 

 
25. The £15m extension to Market Walk Shopping Centre opened its doors in November when 

M&S Foods began trading in the town centre. The new Reel cinema opened in December as 
well as the Escape adventure golf and tenpin bowling and a Loungers restaurant will open in 
January. These agreed tenancies represent 75% of total floor space and approximately £200k 
of net income to the council. The council is negotiating with other potential tenants with the 
expectation that further units become occupied after the new year. A prudent estimate of the 
net income to the council from a fully occupied site is £280k per annum. 
 

26. The Primrose Retirement Village opened its doors to residents in October 2019 and is 
already approaching full occupancy. This Corporate Strategy project will allow people to live 
independently whilst receiving the care and support needed to enjoy later life. A prudent 
estimate of the net income receivable by the council has been included in the budget. These 
estimates will be revisited as occupancy levels and running costs are better understood. 

 
27. Chorley Council’s £8.4m advanced Digital Office Park offers 54,000 sq ft of state-of-the-art 

office space providing hundreds of high value jobs. There has been a lot of interest in the 
building with offices and hot desks now being snapped up by small and medium sized 
enterprises. Due to delays in the construction of a link road on an adjacent site, the occupancy 
levels are not yet as high as originally budgeted. As such a prudent break-even position is 
assumed in 2020/21 with £150k net income to the council in 2021/22 onwards.  

 
28. On 23 July 2019 Full Council approved the £33m purchase of the Logisitcs House site in 

Buckshaw. The council will lease the building back to the current tenant with an expected net 
income, after borrowing costs, of £450k rising to £900k towards the end of the lease term. The 
council will set aside the initial £450k in 2020/21 to create an income equalisation reserve that 
will be used to manage any budget implications of the site becoming vacant. However, the 
current tenant and its parent company have very strong financial standing and this risk of 
default is therefore deemed to be very low.

Agenda Page 65 Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

 

Investing in Corporate Priorities 

In 2019/20 the council allocated over £1m of revenue investment to deliver corporate strategy priorities through a 
programme of activities designed to meet the fundamental needs of local residents, like health, housing and jobs, while 
continuing to get Chorley in the best social and economic position of the future.   

Involving residents in improving 
their local area and equality of 
access for all 
 
£50,000 ongoing investment in 
neighbourhood projects identified as 
priorities by local residents. 
 
£60,000 to fund resource for digital 
inclusion to ensure that residents from 
across the borough are enabled to 
access services online 
 
 
 

 
 
Clean, safe and healthy homes 
and communities 
 
 
 

Clean, safe and healthy homes 
and communities 
 
£100,000 to support the ongoing work of 
the Youth Zone to continue to deliver high 
quality diversionary and wellbeing 
activities for young people in Chorley 
 
£50,000 to improve street cleaning and 
litter collections.  Resident dissatisfaction 
was 12.79% for September 2019 
compared to a target of 20%. 

A strong local economy 
 
 
 

£125,000 to deliver an ambitious events 
programme including the Flower Show, 
Chorley Live and Christmas attractions 
attracting more than 69,000 people 

 
 
 
 
 
 
An ambitious council that does 
more to meet the needs of 
residents and the local area 
 
 
 

 
 
An ambitious council that does 
more to meet the needs of 
residents and the local area 
 
£60,000 to support over 230 vulnerable 
individuals, achieving better wellbeing 
outcomes 
 
£70,000 to run and improve key bus 
routes in the borough to mitigate the 
impact of county wide cuts, ensuring that 
residents can access all areas of the 
borough 

A
genda P

age 66
A

genda Item
 6



 

 

 

 

 
 

Capital Investment  

 

The council’s investments reinforced the 

council’s direction of travel with an emphasis 

on housing, delivering better services for 

residents across the borough and a more 

commercial approach to support the longer-

term sustainability of council services.  The 

strategy successfully progressed large high-

profile projects through to the final stages of 

delivery or completion, shaping the future of 

Chorley to meet the needs of residents of all 

ages both now and in future. 

£850k investment in modernising ICT 

infrastructure including improving to web-based 

services for Chorley residents 

 

£500k investment in Astley Hall and the 

surrounding park, as well as the improvements 

to Hallgate car park. The Astley 2020 project will 

renovate Astley Hall, as well as the parks 

events infrastructure and footpath lighting. 

 

Involving residents in improving their local area 
and equality of access for all 

A strong local economy 

The completion of the Market Walk 

extension project - £15.3m 

 

Enhanced car parking in the town centre - 

£2m 

 

The completion of the Digital Office Park, a 

new prestigious development that will 

provide 5,000 m² of Council owned bespoke 

digital office and start up - £8.1m 

 

A
genda P

age 67
A

genda Item
 6



 

 

 

 

Clean safe and healthy communities 

An ambitious council that does more to meet 
the needs of residents and the local area 

The completion of Primrose Gardens retirement 

living, the council’s £10m extra care facility 

Continued delivery of c. £800k per year of 

home adaptations to enable Chorley residents 

to continue independent living 

£1m investment in the council’s play and open 

spaces  

£4m for the Chorley Youth Zone offering a 

purpose-built facility for the borough’s young 

people aged 8 to 19, and up to 25 for those with 

disabilities. 

 

Chorley Council is facilitating the £2.2m 

Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) investment in the 

redevelopment of Bank Hall, Bretherton. The 

proposals will completely restore the building’s 

external appearance for Chorley residents to 

enjoy. 

The council continues to deliver bus services 

previously provided by LCC. It is the councils 

ambition invest over £100k per annum to 

operate and improve services from the Chorley 

Bus Interchange. 

 

 

A
genda P

age 68
A

genda Item
 6



 

 

 

 

 

The council has successfully delivered major large developments that will radically shape the future for Chorley.  Future investment will build 

on this work to drive forward ambitions for economic growth and ensure that Chorley is an even more attractive place to live, work and invest. 

The council will also continue to work hard to deliver sustainable public services through transforming the organisation, taking a more 

commercial approach and working closely with partners to integrate services.  

 

Future capital investment: 

Westway Playing Fields – £2.7m to bring 

forward a top of the range sports complex  

Improvements to Union Street Offices – £1m 

to deliver a better experience to residents that 

supports the Digital Strategy 

Improvements to Astley Hall and Park – 

£1.6m to ensure a safe and secure local asset 

that offers a high quality, sustainable visitor 

attraction for future years 

Whittle Health Hub – ensuring access to high 

quality health facilities for residents from across 

the borough 

Bringing forward large sites for development 

– housing and industrial units at Shady and Alker 

Lane 

Delivering a new masterplan for Tatton 

Recreation Ground and the surrounding area 

Large scale improvements to local leisure 

facilities as part of the renewal of the leisure 

management contract 

 

F
u

tu
re

 i
n

v
e

s
tm

e
n

t 
 

A
genda P

age 69
A

genda Item
 6



 

 

 

 

 
 
Despite the budget savings identified in this report, as outlined above there remain large forecast 
budget deficits of £1.206m in 2021/22 and £2.093m in 2022/23. To achieve a sufficient reduction in 
net expenditure the Council’s strategy will be: 
 

 
Table 3 – Chorley Borough Council Transformation Programme 
 

 
2020/21 

£m 
2021/22 

£m 
2022/23 

£m 

Adjusted Budget Deficit/(Available Resources) (0.100) 1.206 2.093 

 
Contract Savings 

   

Leisure Centre Management (expires October 2020) - (0.446) (0.446) 

 
Income Generation 

   

Investment Sites  - (0.200) (0.200) 

Parking Income - - (0.200) 

Total Income Generation (0.100) (0.200) (0.400) 

 
Efficiency Savings 

   

Efficiency Savings - (0.660) (1.347) 
    

Additional Investment    

Operate Chorley Bus Station 0.100 0.100 0.100 

Final Budget Deficit/(Available Resources) 0.000 0.000 0.000 

 
  

 
1. To realise savings through the procurement of its contracts 

 
2. To identify the efficiencies through investment in infrastructure and through 

exploring alternative delivery models that will enable the Council to balance the 
budget whilst seeking to minimise the impact on front line service users 
 

3. To make the Council more financially self-sufficient with specific emphasis on 
creating investment that generates income.  

 

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL PLANNING 

Agenda Page 70 Agenda Item 6



TRANSFORMATION STRATEGY  

 

Realising Savings through the Procurement of Contracts 

 

29. During the MTFS period the council will undertake procurement exercises on its contracts that 
are coming to the end of the contract agreement periods. The ambition for the council is that 
through these procurement exercises it will transform its delivery of key services whilst 
generating cost savings and continuing to provide excellent service delivery. The council’s 
current leisure management contract will expire in October 2020. The council encourages an 
innovative approach to service delivery and it is the council’s ambition, through investment in 
its leisure centres, that it will achieve a revenue neutral leisure management contract with 
enhanced services to Chorley residents.  

 

Income Generation 
 

Investment Sites 
 
30. The council owns several sites that are being developed to bring forward the expansion of 

employment, housing and health services within the borough. These include: 

• Land at Alker Lane 

• Land at Shady Lane 

• Land at Cowling Farm 

• The site for a new Health Hub on Preston Road 

• The redevelopment of Tatton Recreation Ground including the disused bus depot 

 

31. These sites are at different stages of advancement but are forecast to generate additional net 
income for the council of £200k by 2021/22. 

 
Council Tax and Parking Charges 
 

32. The council’s ambition to borrow and invest in income generating assets has resulted in there 
being no requirement to burden council taxpayers with additional council tax increase from 
Chorley Council in 2020/21. The council will continue to make itself more financially self-
sustainable and therefore it proposes there will be no further council tax increases in 2021/22 
and 2022/23. However, the uncertainty in Government policy relating to how much Chorley 
Council will retain in locally generated business rates, means that future increases in council 
tax must be considered every year as part of the broader strategy in dealing with the budget 
deficit. 

 

33. The council’s parking charges were reduced in 2016/17 as part of the updated parking 
strategy. Future increases in parking charges will be considered by the council if they are 
deemed necessary to meet the budget deficit. However, new charges would only be introduced 
as part of a renewed parking strategy and only if changes to parking tariffs would not be 
detrimental to the already successful improvements to the town centre shopping and night-
time economy.  

Efficiency Savings 
 

34. The transformation strategy covers many aspects of change both within the council and in 
partnership with other organisations. At this stage the main strands of the strategy that could 
generate savings are outlined further below. 

 

Agenda Page 71 Agenda Item 6



35. The Digital Strategy was approved by Executive Cabinet in June 2017. The strategy 
incorporates 32 separate projects that seek to increases digital take up and inclusion, promote 
smarter working and develop positive work cultures. 

 

• The Digital Strategy will develop and implement the ‘WorkSmart’ programme. This will 
facilitate a shared culture of smarter working, maximising the use of technology and digital 
information. Cost savings are expected through process/productivity improvements and 
consolidation of office space.  
 

• Efficiencies are also expected through the further increase in digital take up of council 
services, enabling customers to access council services online when and wherever they 
like, while also reducing the demand on more expensive channels such as face to face and 
over the phone 

 

36. The Streetscene Modernisation Strategy was approved by Executive Cabinet in January 
2017. The Streetscene service aims to introduce several change themes designed to 
challenge current working practices and modernise and introduce improvements to deliver high 
quality services in a co-ordinated way.  

 

37. Developing these strategies requires investment by the council in its infrastructure. Through 
the WorkSmart programme the council’s ambition is to consolidate its portfolio of offices to 
reduce costs and improve efficiency across its services. To do this, the council has set aside 
£1.3m in the capital programme to modernise its offices. 

 

38. There are a range of benefits that will be achieved from this work including improving the 
customer facing areas to improve residents’ customer experience when visiting the Union 
Street offices. This will include and encourage the use of self-service terminals and link to one 
of the digital strategy projects to refresh the council’s website, however it will also continue to 
include a one stop shop for customers who still want to speak to someone face to face. The 
changes will lead to a better use of space and therefore create additional capacity in the civic 
offices to enable all office based staff at Bengal Street to move to the Union St building, which 
will lead to operational savings from rationalising office based staff from across three to two 
buildings. Improvements in the facilities in the town hall will enhance the commercial offer of 
the Lancastrian as well as providing additional facilities such as meeting rooms and break out 
areas. 

 

39. As outlined in this report the council has expanded its shared services with South Ribble 
Borough Council. The expected efficiency savings through the first phase of shared services 
is included in the draft budget. From here both councils will develop further shared strategies 
that will deliver improved services for both councils whilst also delivering efficiency savings.  

 

Additional Revenue Investment 
 

40. Through the effective management of the budget Chorley Council is able to invest in additional 
projects that deliver its Corporate Priorities. The opportunity has arisen to takeover the 
management of the Chorley Bus Station from LCC. Chorley Council has a strong track record 
of delivering bus services more efficiently and effectively than were previously managed by 
LCC. Chorley Council therefore welcomes the opportunity to operate the bus station and 
improve the services for residents. It is forecast to cost £100k per annum with the expectation 
that costs will be better managed by Chorley Council as the station is incorporated into the 
council’s master plan for the town centre as a whole. 

 
41. Chorley Council declared a Climate Emergency at Full Council on 19 November 2019.  The 

2020/21 budget includes resources to fund a climate change officer and £50k of revenue 
reserves to help develop local climate change initiatives. This will only be the council’s starting 
point; the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group will review and recommend further corporate 
approaches to Full Council.  

  

Agenda Page 72 Agenda Item 6



 

42. Over the past six years the council has made ambitious investments to help enable the delivery 
of a balanced budget. However, the council has also been ensured a prudent and affordable 
approach to delivering the medium-term financial strategies. The council has set aside and 
increased the balances to several reserves that can be utilised if unforeseen events have a 
negative impact on council’s finances. The expected balances of these reserved is given in 
table 4 below. 

Table 4: Forecast Balances - assuming the balances are not utilised over 3 years 

 
2020/21 

£m 
2021/22 

£m 
2022/23 

£m 

General Fund Reserve 4.000 4.000 4.000 

Reserves - Income     

Market Walk Income Equalisation Reserve 0.500 0.550 0.600 

Logistics House Income Equalisation Reserve 0.450 0.450 0.450 

Business Rates Retention Reserve 0.960 0.960 0.960 

Total Reserves - Income  1.910 1.960 2.010 

Reserves – Asset Maintenance    

Market Walk Asset Maintenance 0.150 0.200 0.250 

Primrose Gardens Asset Maintenance 0.030 0.060 0.090 

General Asset Maintenance 0.150 0.150 0.150 

Total Reserves – Asset Maintenance  0.330 0.410 0.490 

Reserves - Other    

Support for Local Businesses & Corporate Priorities 0.300 0.300 0.300 

Change Management Reserve 0.300 0.300 0.300 

Total Reserves – Other  0.600 0.600 0.600 

 

43. The total forecast level of reserves is expected to be £7.6m in 2020/21 with £6.8m of these 
reserves identified in table 4. These reserves are necessary to mitigate the financial impact of 
the uncertainty the council faces such as uncertainty regarding the national and local economy 
and uncertain future funding levels. 

 
44. A large risk associated with business rates income relates to two applications for mandatory 

charitable relief received from Lancashire Teaching Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. If 
successful, the application would have been backdated to 2010 and therefore have a 
significant impact on the Council’s revenue budget. A headline figure was a potential £2m 
impact on the Council’s general fund and a further c£200k reduction in ongoing retained 
business rates. However, the High Court has rejected the case brought by NHS hospital trusts 
deeming them not established for charitable purposes. 

 

RESERVES 

Agenda Page 73 Agenda Item 6



 

45. This report has dealt with the Council’s revenue budget. Implicit in the investment programme 
set out above, however, are financial implications for the capital programme. The latest three 
year Capital Programme can be found in the Revenue and Capital Budget Monitoring Report 
2019/20 Report 2 approved at November Executive Cabinet 2019. Table 5 below outlines the 
proposed changes to the capital programme. 

 

Table 5: Changes to Capital Programme 
 

Project 
2020/21 

£m 
2021/22 

£m 
2022/23 

£m 

Works to Existing Markets 0.400   

Chapel St and Surrounding Public Realm 2.500   

Purchase of Affordable Housing 1.500   

Chorley Borough Service Centres 0.500   

Town Centre Public Realm  2.000 2.000 

TOTAL 4.900 2.000 2.000 

 
46. Chorley Council is incredibly proud of its Famous Markets that date back to 1498. The council 

will continue to support its traditional indoor and outdoor markets and will therefore invest 
£400k in 2020/21 in new market canopies and a refurbishment of the covered market. 

 

47. There council will provide targeted investment of up to £2.5m to improve the environmental 
quality, built environment and tenant mix within Chapel Street and the immediate area. This 
could result in the council purchasing and re-letting units. 

 

48. The council’s Housing Strategy outlined the council’s commitment to improve the quality of 
housing, to meet the changing needs of our residents and to rebalance the housing market. 
The council manages a wide portfolio of housing including sheltered accommodation, 
affordable housing and extra care. To build on this success the council will invest further in 
affordable housing setting aside £1.5m for the purchase, refurbishment and rental of 
affordable housing in the borough. 

 
49. The council has supported all of its Local Service Centres in recent years through grant 

schemes to local businesses. The council will continue borough-wide investment through 
targeted capital projects in local service centres and will set aside £500k to plan, prioritise and 
deliver these projects.  

 
50. Chorley Council has successfully delivered over £15m in delivering the initial stages of its 

Town Centre Masterplan including works Fazarkerly, Market St South and Market Walk. The 
council will continue its commitment to deliver the masterplan and will set aside £4m in the 
coming three-year period to deliver improvements for its residents.  

 
51. The council’s capital programme is constructed based upon several objectives including the 

requirement to be affordable and prudent. To do this the council will ensure that whenever 
possible the impact of additional investment on revenue budgets will be minimised. The council 
has a number of sources of funding it can use to invest in the borough including, CIL, s106, 
grant funding and capital receipts. Where appropriate the council will also generate future 
revenue income streams through capital investment to exceed the repayment of borrowing.  

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

Agenda Page 74 Agenda Item 6



IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 

 
Risk 
 

52. Some of figures outlined in the report are estimates and based on assumptions that are likely 
to change. These include external risks such as changes to Government funding 
arrangements, changes to interest rates and national and local economic changes. In addition, 
the council faces internal risks such as void rates in its income generating assets and the risks 
of delivering transformational change such as the expansion of shared services.  

 

53. The risks are dealt with through managing prudent levels of reserves, continually monitoring 
government announcements, monitoring current and future economic projections and by 
making prudent budget assumptions. 

 

54. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 
included: 

 

Finance ✓ Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity  ✓ 

Legal ✓ 
Integrated Impact Assessment 
required? 

 

No significant implications in this area  Policy and Communications ✓ 

 
 

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER  

 

55. The financial implications of the above report are all contained in the text above but to clarify 
all proposals are funded and can be accommodated within the 2020/21 budget. It should be 
noted that the report does contain a number of assumptions on some future budget elements 
and also what the final out-turn position will be for 2019/20. Should any of these change due 
to unforeseen circumstances arising before 31st March 2020, this will be reviewed and 
reported 

 

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  

 

56. The budget proposals are in accordance with the requirements of legislation 

 

 

GARY HALL 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND FINANCE OFFICER 

 

There are no background papers to this report. 

    

Report Author Ext Date Doc ID 

James Thomson 5025 01/01/20  

 

 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 75 Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1

Cumulative Budget Deficit & Budget Strategy 2020/21 to 2022/23

2019/20 2020/21 2021/22 2022/23

ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE ESTIMATE

£'000 £ £ £

CASH BASE BUDGET REQUIREMENT 14,251 13,515 12,525 12,442

Cash Movements:

Inflation Pay 295 229 201 210

Pensions 27 201 33 31

Pensions Rate Adj. 126 (526) 17 18

Non-Pay (17) (30) 12 3

Contractual 76 116 136 149

Income 25 (1) 7 6

Staffing funded by CIL Admin 30 0 0 0

Transfer to Net Financing (75) 0 0 0

Increments 47 46 26 10

Volume Expenditure 257 30 (115) 136

Volume Income 98 87 83 (6)

Market Walk Extension 0 (125) (30) 0

Retirement Village 121 (296) (16) (7)

Digital Office Park 63 (160) (150) 0

Logistics House 0 (450) 0 0

Extending Shared Services 0 (115) (86) 0

Housing Company 65 (65) 0 0

Senior Management Restructure 0 30 0 0

Review of Fees & Charges (125) (7) 0 0

Base Budget Review Savings (20) 0 0 0

Review of Net Financing - Capital Investment (Future Years) (200) 0 (200) 0

Review of Contracts (1,100) 0 0 0

Transformation – Efficiency Savings Achieved (115) 0 0 0

Review of Investment Items & Grants (104) 0 0 0

Transformation – Efficiency Savings Target (85) 85 0 0

Transformation -  Income Generation (MW Extension) (125) 0 0 0

LCC Transition Fund 0 (40) 0 0

DIRECTORATE CASH BUDGETS 13,515 12,525 12,442 12,994

Contingency:

 - Management of the Establishment (150) (150) (150) (150)

Directorate & Corporate Budgets 13,365 12,375 12,292 12,844

Net Financing

- Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP - capital financing) 570 655 668 668

- Interest 741 655 642 642

- Temporary Savings on Borowing (100) (100) (100) (100)

sub total 1,210 1,210 1,210 1,210

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 14,575 13,585 13,503 14,054

Financed By:

Council Tax - Borough (7,128) (7,186) (7,294) (7,403)

Parish Precepts 686 686 686 686

Council Tax  Parishes (686) (686) (686) (686)

Revenue Support Grant 0 0 0 0

Retained Business Rates (3,562) (3,314) (3,314) (3,314)

Business Rates Pooling 0 0 800 800

Business Rates Pooling - Lancashire Pilot Scheme 213 0 0 0

Government Section 31 Grants (2,144) (1,424) (1,424) (1,424)

Business Rates Retention Reserve 237 261 0 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Business Rates 234 61 0 0

New Homes Bonus (2,790) (2,346) (1,125) (550)

New Burdens Grants (58) (20) 0 0

Collection Fund (Surplus)/Deficit - Council Tax (70) (88) 0 0

Transfers to/(from) Earmarked Reserves (294) (79) 60 (71)

Create Logistics House Income Reserve 0 450 0 0

Commercialisation of Council Owned Assets 485 0 0 0

Support for Local Businesses & Corporate Priorities 300 0 0 0

Transfer to/(from) General Balances 0 0 0 0

TOTAL FINANCING (14,575) (13,685) (12,296) (11,962)

CUMULATIVE GROSS BUDGET POSITION 0 (100) 1,206 2,093

Transformation Programme
Leisure Centre Management - Contract savings 0 0 (446) (446)

Investment Sites - Income Generation 0 0 (200) (200)

Parking Income 0 0 0 (200)

Efficiency Savings 0 0 (660) (1,347)

Operate Chorley Bus Station 0 100 100 100

Forecast Medium Term Budget Gap 0 0 0 0

Agenda Page 77
Agenda Item 6



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 2019/20 

The Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme details the planned activity to be undertaken over the forthcoming municipal year 

through scheduled Committee meetings, task group, events and through use of the 'rapporteur' model. 

The items on the work programme are determined by the Committee following the work programming session carried out by the 

Steering Group at the start of the municipal year in line with the Overview and Scrutiny Committees terms of reference detailed in 

the County Council's Constitution.  This includes provision for the rights of County Councillors to ask for any matter to be 

considered by the Committee or to call-in decisions. 

Coordination of the work programme activity is undertaken by the Chair and Deputy Chair of all of the Scrutiny Committees to avoid 

potential duplication.  

In addition to the terms of reference outlined in the Constitution (Part 2 Article 5) for all Overview and Scrutiny Committees, the 

Health Scrutiny Committee will: 

 To scrutinise matters relating to health and adult social care delivered by the authority, the National Health Service and other 
relevant partners. 

 

 In reviewing any matter relating to the planning, provision and operation of the health service in the area, to invite interested 
parties to comment on the matter and take account of relevant information available, particularly that provided by the Local 
Healthwatch 
 

 In the case of contested NHS proposals for substantial service changes, to take steps to reach agreement with the NHS body 
 

 In the case of contested NHS proposals for substantial service changes where agreement cannot be reached with the NHS, 
to refer the matter to the relevant Secretary of State.  

 

 To refer to the relevant Secretary of State any NHS proposal which the Committee feels has been the subject of inadequate 
consultation.    

 

 To scrutinise the social care services provided or commissioned by NHS bodies exercising local authority functions under the 
Health and Social Care Act 2012. 

A
genda P

age 79
A

genda Item
 7

http://mgintranet/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=914&MId=2916&Ver=4&info=1&bcr=1


Appendix 'A' 
 

 

 

 To request that the Internal Scrutiny Committee establish as necessary joint working arrangements with district councils and 
other neighbouring authorities.  
 

 To draw up a forward programme of health scrutiny in consultation with other local authorities, NHS partners, the Local 
Healthwatch and other key stakeholders. 
 

 To acknowledge within 20 working days to referrals on relevant matters from the Local Healthwatch or Local Healthwatch 
contractor, and to keep the referrer informed of any action taken in relation to the matter. 

 

 To require the Chief Executives of local NHS bodies to attend before the Committee to answer questions, and to invite the 
chairs and non-executive directors of local NHS bodies to appear before the Committee to give evidence.  

 

 To invite any officer of any NHS body to attend before the Committee to answer questions or give evidence. 
 

 To recommend the Full Council to co-opt on to the Committee persons with appropriate expertise in relevant health matters, 
without voting rights. 

 

 To establish and make arrangements for a Health Steering Group the main purpose of which to be to manage the workload 
of the full Committee more effectively in the light of the increasing number of changes to health services.   
 

The Work Programme will be submitted to and agreed by the Scrutiny Committees at each meeting and will be published with each 

agenda. 

  

A
genda P

age 80
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

The dates are indicative of when the Health Scrutiny Committee will review the item, however they may need to be rescheduled 

and new items added as required. 

Health Scrutiny Committee work programme 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead 
Officers/organisations 

Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Committee 

 

Healthier Lancashire 
and South Cumbria 
Integrated Care 
System - five year 
local strategy 
 

Feedback on draft five 
year strategy 

Dr Amanda Doyle, 
Healthier Lancashire 
and South Cumbria 

24 
September 
2019  
 
and 
  
5 November 
2019 
 

  

Our Health Our Care 
Programme 

Update on the future of 
acute services in central 
Lancashire 

Dr Gerry Skailes, 
Lancashire Teaching 
Hospitals; Denis Gizzi, 
Greater Preston and 
Chorley and South 
Ribble CCGs and 
Jason Pawluk, NHS 
Transformation Unit 

24 
September  
 
and  
 
3 December 
2019 

  

      

Impact of recruitment 
of additional 
Occupational 
Therapists 

Update on the 
recruitment of additional 
OTs and impact on 
waiting times 

Tony Pounder, LCC 5 November 
2019 (Moved 
from 3 
December) 

  

      

A
genda P

age 81
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead 
Officers/organisations 

Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Committee 

 

Urgent Mental Health 
Pathway 
 

Improvement journey of 
LSCFT… 
 

Caroline Donovan, 
Chief Executive, 
LSCFT (incl. LCC 
officers) 

3 December 
2019 (Moved 
from 5 
November) 

  

      

Transforming Care 
(Calderstones) 
 

Model of care for CCG 
commissioned learning 
disability beds 
 
To receive a written 
report and action plan 
on performance against 
targets for the trajectory 
for discharge rates, 
annual health checks 
(AHC) and Learning 
Disabilities Mortality 
Reviews (LeDeR). 

Rachel Snow-Miller, 
Director for 
Commissioning for All-
age Mental Health, 
Learning Disabilities 
and Autism, Healthier 
Lancashire and South 
Cumbria 

4 February 
2020 

  

      

Housing with Care and 
Support Strategy 
2018-2025 

Update on the 
implementation of the 
strategy 

Cabinet Members S 
Turner and G Gooch, 
Louise Taylor, Joanne 
Reed, Craig Frost, Julie 
Dockerty, LCC 

31 March 
2020 

  

Delayed Transfers of 
Care (DToC) 
 

Update on performance 
as a whole system and 

Sue Lott, LCC and 
Faith Button, Ailsa 
Brotherton, Lancashire 

31 March 
2020 

  

A
genda P

age 82
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead 
Officers/organisations 

Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Committee 

 

preparations for winter 
2019/20 

Teaching Hospitals, 
Emma Ince, GPCCG 
and CSRCCG. 

      

Social Prescribing Update on progress 
with the programme of 
work 
 

Linda Vernon, Healthier 
Lancashire and South 
Cumbria and Michelle 
Pilling, East Lancs 
CCG 

12 May 2020   

Cessation of the 
Lancashire Wellbeing 
Service 

Impact of 
decommissioning the 
service. Tracking of 
service users 

Dr Sakthi Karunanithi, 
CC Shaun Turner, LCC 

12 May 2020   

      

Tackling period 
poverty 

To report back on the 
activities of the 
Government's joint 
taskforce on period 
poverty in the UK 

CC Nikki Hennessy 
(rapporteur) 

tbc   

 
Other topics to be scheduled 

 Improved/Better Care Fund – and the transformational impact 

 Vascular Service Improvement – New Model of Care for Lancashire and South Cumbria (Joint Committee) 

 Pooling health and social care budgets (Joint Committee?) 

 Continuing Healthcare Assessments 
  

A
genda P

age 83
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Health Scrutiny Steering Group work programme 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead Officers Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Steering Group 

 

Work programming 
workshop 

workshop on the 
priorities of the ICS 
and work programming 
for 2019/20 

CCs S Turner and G 
Gooch, and Dr Sakthi 
Karunanithi, LCC 
(10:30am), 
Healthier Lancashire and 
South Cumbria 
(11:30am) and Oliver 
Pearson, Healthwatch 

19 June 
2019 

- - 

      

Delayed Transfers of 
Care 

Progress update and 
learning from ECIST 
event. 

Sue Lott, LCC Faith 
Button and Emma Ince, 
GPCCG and CSRCCG 

17 July 
2019 
(11:15am) 

- - 

Head and Neck Improving quality and 
access to head and 
neck services 

Tracy Murray, Healthier 
Lancashire and South 
Cumbria, and Sharon 
Walkden, NHS Midlands 
and Lancashire 
Commissioning Support 
Unit (CSU) 

17 July 
2019 
(12noon) 

- - 

Our Health Our Care Update on the future of 
acute services in 
central Lancashire 

Jason Pawluk, NHS 
Transformation Unit 

17 July 
2019 
(10:30am) 

- - 

      

A
genda P

age 84
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead Officers Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Steering Group 

 

Social Prescribing Council for Voluntary 
Services across 
Lancashire 

Linda Vernon, Healthier 
Lancashire and South 
Cumbria; with Christine 
Blythe, BPR CVS, Joe 
Hannett, Community 
Futures and Lynne 
Johnstone, LCC 

11 
September 
2019 

  

Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee for the 
Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Integrated 
Care System (ICS) 

Draft Terms of 
Reference 

Gary Halsall, LCC 11 
September 
2019 

  

Stroke Programme   Improvement, and the 
position on Hyper 
Acute Stroke Services 

Gemma Stanion, 
Healthier Lancashire and 
South Cumbria and 
Elaine Day, NHS England 

11 
September 
2019 

  

      

Joint Health Scrutiny 
Committee for the 
Lancashire and South 
Cumbria Integrated 
Care System (ICS) 

Draft Terms of 
Reference 

Members and scrutiny 
support officers from 
Lancashire, Cumbria, 
Blackburn and Blackpool 
Councils 

16 October 
2019 

  

      

Suicide Prevention in 
Lancashire 

Progress report/annual 
update on outcomes 
set out in the Logic 
Model 

Dr Sakthi 
Karunanithi/Clare Platt 
and Chris Lee, LCC 

20 
November 
2019 

  

A
genda P

age 85
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead Officers Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Steering Group 

 

North West Ambulance 
Service (NWAS) 

Trust wide rota review Peter Mulcahy 20 
November 
2019 

  

      

Review of Primary Care 
Networks and 
Neighbourhoods 

Themed review for 
2019/20 

Peter Tinson, FWCCG 
and Stephen Gough, 
NHS England 

18 
December 
2019 (tbc) 

  

Cessation of the 
Lancashire Wellbeing 
Service 
 

Exit plan to identify 
possible mitigating 
actions for service 
users (schedule before 
31 December 2019) 

Dr Sakthi Karunanithi, CC 
Shaun Turner, LCC 

18 
December 
2019 

  

Quality Accounts 
Preparations for 
responding to NHS 
Trusts Quality Accounts 
(incl. early involvement) 

Continued focus on 
Lancashire and South 
South Cumbria 
Foundation Trust and 
Lancashire Teaching 
Hospitals Foundation 
Trust 

Oliver Pearson, David 
Blacklock, Sue 
Stevenson, Healthwatch 
Lancashire 

18 
December 
2019 and 
16 April 
2020 

  

      

NHSE – Quality 
Surveillance Group 

Overview and 
relationships with 
scrutiny 

Sally Napper, NHSE, Lisa 
Slack, LCC 

15 January 
2020 (tbc) 

  

      

      

A
genda P

age 86
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

Topic Scrutiny Purpose 
(objectives, evidence, initial 
outcomes) 

Lead Officers Proposed 
Date(s) 

Recommendations Progress 

 
Steering Group 

 

   19 
February 
2020 

  

      

      

   11 March 
2020 

  

      

      

   16 April 
2020 

  

      

      

Transforming hospital 
services and care for 
people in Southport, 
Formby & West Lancs 

Update on the Trust's 
key targets  

Silas Nicholls, Southport 
and Ormskirk Hospital 
Trust 

? May 
2020 

  

      

      

Health in All Policies 
Briefing note 

Embedding spatial 
planning and economic 
determinants 

Dr Aidan Kirkpatrick and 
Andrea Smith, LCC 

-  Pending 

 
Other topics to be scheduled: 

 Neighbourhoods/Primary Care Networks – reviewing impact at local level and accessibility of health care services and 
provision of local facilities (capital and estates strategy – opportunities and constraints) – theme for steering Group? 

 Sexual health – commissioning LSCFT and Young Person's Clinics 

A
genda P

age 87
A

genda Item
 7



Appendix 'A' 
 

 

 Integrated Care Partnerships (ICP) – Central Lancashire; Fylde Coast; Morecambe Bay; Pennine; West Lancashire 

 Chorley A&E, GTD Healthcare and CCGs - performance 
 
Standing items: 

 Health and Wellbeing Board update 

 Lancashire Safeguarding Boards Annual Report 

 Adult Social Care annual update; Winter Plan; and Complaints Annual Report 

A
genda P

age 88
A

genda Item
 7



 

 

 

 

 

Report of Meeting Date 

Director (Early Intervention and 
Support) 

(Introduced by the Acting 
Executive Member (Homes and 

Housing)) 

Executive Cabinet  1st August 2019 

 

EXECUTIVE CABINET RESPONSE TO THE OVERVIEW & 

SCRUTINY TASK GROUP - SOCIAL HOUSING STANDARDS 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 

1. To agree the Executive Cabinet’s response to the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group’s 
recommendations regarding the quality and standards of housing in the social sector. 

 

RECOMMENDATION(S) 

2. It is recommended that the Executive Cabinet’s response to the Overview and Scrutiny 
Task Group’s recommendations is that the majority, with the exclusion of item 12 & 13, are 
incorporated into a Social Housing Standards Charter, to be developed and agreed with the 
Registered Housing Providers. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT 

3. The standards of social housing within Chorley has been raised by residents over a number 

of years.   The Overview and Scrutiny Committee wanted to engage with Registered 
Providers to understand their policies and procedures for Customer Service, 
Communication and Engagement, Property Maintenance, Standards, and 
Neighbourhood issues, whilst also respecting tenants’ views on how the current working 
practises were impacting on them.  

 
4. A copy of the Overview and Scrutiny report is attached as Appendix A. The 

recommendations are listed on pages 2 and 3, (points 1 to 31) of the report. 
 
5. It is recommended that the Executive Cabinet agree the proposed recommendations to be 

included in a Social Housing Standards Charter to be developed and agreed with the 
Registered Housing Providers. 

 

Confidential report 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Key Decision? 
Please bold as appropriate 

Yes  No 

 

Reason  
Please bold as appropriate 

1, a change in service 
provision that impacts upon 
the service revenue budget by 
£100,000 or more 

2, a contract worth £100,000 
or more 

 

Agenda Page 89 Agenda Item 9



3, a new or unprogrammed 
capital scheme of £100,000 or 
more 

4, Significant impact in 
environmental, social or 
physical terms in two or more 
wards  

 
REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION(S) 

(If the recommendations are accepted) 
 

6. The recommendation to create and agree a Social Housing Charter to include the majority of 
recommendations in partnership with the Registered Providers will provide a workable 
document to acquire investment from social landlords. It will provide a standard which can be 
monitored and managed closely.  This Charter will take an early intervention approach and 
ensure issues are raised and dealt quickly by the council whilst working in partnership with 
local social landlords. 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED 
 

7. No alternatives considered 
 

CORPORATE PRIORITIES 
 
8. This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives: 
 

Involving residents in improving their local 
area and equality of access for all 

 A strong local economy  

Clean, safe and healthy homes and 
communities 

 An ambitious council that does more 
to meet the needs of residents and 
the local area 

 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

9. The Task Group was established in January 18 and met nine times between January 
2018 and February 2019.  

 
10. The Task Group believed that the views of residents should form part of this process and 

inform the outcomes and therefore, took the step to commission a social tenant’s survey to 
fully understand their views and any disparities between the approach taken by Registered 

Providers. 
 

11. Similarly, it was necessary to understand the Registered Providers view, consequently 
representatives from the boroughs two largest landlords, Jigsaw Homes (Chorley Community 
Housing) and Places for People were interviewed at length by the Task Group. 

 

12. The recommendations have been reviewed by the Executive Member for Homes and 
Housing, consequently the recommendation to the Executive Cabinet is that the majority of 
the recommendations should be approved, apart from two under the Communication and 
Engagement strand which are: 

 

    12.  To create a resident’s association for Chorley Borough and invite all Chorley 
RP’s. 

    13.  To establish a social sector housing forum for Chorley Borough and invite all 

  Chorley RP’s and Chorley Borough Councillors. 
 

13. The alternative for the aforementioned two recommendations to be replaced with the 
creation of a joint working group.  It will be necessary for the Working Group to be created 

Agenda Page 90 Agenda Item 9



in partnership with the Registered Providers to negotiate, developed and oversee the 
development of a Social Housing Standards Charter for Chorley. 

 

14. All other recommendations should be approved and acted upon, although it worth noting, 
item 9, under the heading Customer Service, as it was felt that the council are currently 
extremely proactive in supporting residents in dealing with the Registered Providers, so this 
can only be highlighted and strengthened within the Charter.   

 
15. Additionally, item 24 under the heading Property, Maintenance and Standards should be 

approved, although in doing so, consideration should be given to the costs associated and 
the ability to use locally based and appropriately qualified tradespeople where possible. 

 
16. Timescales detailed below: 

 

. 
 
 

 
 
 
IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT 
 
17. This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments are 

included: 
 

Finance  Customer Services   

Human Resources  Equality and Diversity   

Legal  Integrated Impact 
Assessment required? 

 

No significant implications in this 
area 

 Policy and Communications  

 
COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER  
 
18. No comment 
 
COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER  
 
19. No comments. 
 
CHRIS SINNOTT 
DIRECTOR OF EARLY INTERVENTION AND SUPPORT 
 

   

Report Author Ext Date 

Fiona Hepburn 5706 17
th
 July 2019 

 
 

 

 

Timescales 2019/2020 

Creation of Working Group By 24th October 2019 

Develop the Charter By 31st January 2020  

Finalisation of the Charter By 28th February 2020 

Charter presented to Overview and Scrutiny By 31st March 2020 

Agenda Page 91 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Task Group - Quality of 
housing provided by social 
landlords  
Final report  

Agenda Page 53 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 93 Agenda Item 9



Introduction  
 
The Quality of Social Housing Properties has been raised by residents for a number 
of years and was identified as an important task group topic. The Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee wanted to engage with Registered Providers to understand their 
policies and procedures for Customer Service, Communication and Engagement, 
Property Maintenance and Standards, and Neighbourhood issues, whilst also 
respecting tenants’ views on how these impacted upon them.  
 
The Task Group was established in January 18 and met nine times between January 
2018 and February 2019. This report details information about the witnesses with 
whom the Task Group met, the information the Task Group received including a 
commissioned tenants survey, and the conclusions that the Task Group reached.  It 
also includes a list of recommendations that the Task Group wish to put forward to 
the Executive Cabinet for their consideration and implementation. 
 
I would like to thank my fellow members of the Task Group for their dedication and 
contributions. I would also like to thank those Registered Providers and officers of 
the council who gave presentations and information at the meetings.  Their 
contribution allowed the Task Group to gain a greater understanding of the topic, and 
this will ensure that Tenants feel respected and empower them to be valued 
members of the community.   
 

 
 
Councillor Matthew Lynch - Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group  

  

Agenda Page 54 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 94 Agenda Item 9



Recommendations  
For Chorley Council 
1. To run a Members Learning Session on housing issues at the beginning of 

each Municipal Year.  
2. To promote the take up of Disabled Facilities Grants with RP’s.   
3. To lobby the Government for greater regulation of RP’s.   
4. For the following to be considered for inclusion within a new Chorley Good 

Homes Charter - a charter that RPs are encouraged to sign up to.  The 
charter could include Customer Service, Property Maintenance and Standards 
Engagement and Communication, and Neighbourhoods.    

 
Customer Service 
5. Customer representation should be involved in the complaints process.   
6. To provide a VIP mail service or a point of contact at a senior level to enable 

Councillors to represent their constituents on housing issues. 
7. Dealing with complaints  

a. Residents must be able to obtain high quality, timely and local 
responses to complaints that they raise.   

b. To acknowledge letters within 5 working days and respond fully within 
7 working days. If this is not possible to write to tell residents why and 
to let them know how long it is expected to take to respond fully.   

c. To answer the phone within 20 seconds. 
d. To respond within 1 working day to emails (this may be an automated 

acknowledgement).   
e. There should be a clear, concise and user-friendly complaints 

procedure which is advertised on the website and available to all 
tenants.   

f. Residents should have a nominated person to deal with an official 
complaint.  

8. To undertake and publish annual satisfaction surveys from local residents and 
use this information to improve services.  

9. The Council to be proactive in supporting residents in dealing with RP’s.   
 
Communication and engagement 
10. To use all forms of communication, e.g. emails, website, apps, texts, 

newsletters, noticeboards and face to face. 
11. Following consultation with residents for large- and small-scale investment 

information should be provided about planned maintenance 14 days in 
advance. 

12. To create a resident’s association for Chorley Borough and invite all Chorley 
RP’s.   

13. To establish a social sector housing forum for Chorley Borough and invite all 
Chorley RP’s and Chorley Borough Councillors.   

14. To provide a quarterly update to Members, including planned maintenance, 
updates and events etc.   

15. To undertake walks of RP managed areas with ward Councillors, annually as 
a minimum. 

16. To have available and promote to residents a Local Residents Engagement 
Strategy.   

 

Agenda Page 55 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 95 Agenda Item 9



 
Property maintenance and standards 
17. Properties should meet the Decent Homes Standard (or equivalent), which 

requires social properties to be free of hazards that pose a risk to residents, to 
be in a reasonable state of repair, to have reasonably modern facilities and 
services such as kitchens and bathrooms and efficient heating effective 
insulation and damp proofing.  This should be monitored.   

18. To have 60% of properties energy efficient in two years.  
19. For non-emergency repairs a visit should be undertaken in 2 working days 

and completed within five working days and guaranteed for a year.  This will 
be measured by a key performance indicator.   

20. There should be a standard for emergency repairs, from point of report to fully 
completed repair should be completed within 2 days and guaranteed for a 
year.   

21. To install smoke alarms on every storey, and carbon monoxide alarms in 
every room containing solid fuel burning and gas appliances. 

22. The exterior of the properties should be included when considering health and 
safety responsibilities of RP’s. 

23. To decorate and undertake large scale maintenance when a property is void 
where possible, when a new kitchen, bathroom or boiler is required in the next 
year.   

24. To endeavour to use locally based and appropriately qualified tradespeople 
where possible.   

 
Neighbourhood issues 
25. To demonstrate value for money and full transparency in relation to service 

charges, their administration and show how residents can be involved in what 
the service charge is spent on.   

26. To be proactive in organising community sessions (these could include litter 
picks and community events) and encourage residents to take ownership of 
their properties and their community environment locally.   

27. To increase parking provision for tenants where there is the greatest need, 
following consultation with residents.   

28. To engage in a proactive and preventative approach to resolve issues and 
work with residents, partners and neighbourhoods to show the safety of the 
community is paramount.  

29. To assist and support tenants to fulfil the obligations of their tenancy 
agreements, and where appropriate enforce tenancy agreements as a last 
resort. 

 
For Registered Providers  
30. To adopt the Chorley Good Homes Charter, following its creation by Chorley 

Council, to ensure consistency of housing services across the Borough.   
31. To support the Youth Zone with the aim of reducing anti-social behaviour. 
 
 
 

  

Agenda Page 56 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 96 Agenda Item 9



Membership of the Task Group 
Councillor Matthew Lynch (Chair) (from May 18)   
Councillor Jane Fitzsimons (Chair) (from January 18 to May 18) 
Councillor Yvonne Hargreaves      Councillor Margaret Lees      
Councillor June Molyneaux     Councillor Alistair Morwood      
Councillor Steve Murfitt Councillor Mick Muncaster (until May 18) 
Councillor Kim Snape  
 

Officer Support 
Fiona Hepburn, Housing Solutions Manager 
Ruth Rimmington, Democratic and Member Services Team Leader   
 

Scoping the review 
The objectives were:  
1. To work with Registered Providers to improve the quality of social housing and 

customer service in Chorley 
2. To engage with tenants and consider their views of property standards 
3. To share best practice across Chorley 
 
The desired outcomes were: 
1. To evidence the quality of social housing in Chorley  
2. To work with Registered Providers to develop a Chorley Healthy Homes 

Charter – to encourage standards that are above the Decent Homes Standard 
3. To work with Registered Providers to ensure excellent customer service  
4. To make recommendations for improvements to the Executive Cabinet   
 

Terms of Reference: 
1. To understand the role and powers of the council in monitoring the quality of 

housing provided by social landlords 
2. To establish if there are issues regarding the quality of social housing in 

Chorley 
 

Witnesses 
The following witnesses met with the task group and shared information: 
Jane Hurley, Operations Manager - West, Places for People (PfP) 
Richard Houghton, Director of Operations (CCH)  
Scott Butterfield and James Mulvaney from in:fusion Research 
Councillor Alistair Bradley, Executive Leader, Chorley Council  
Gary Hall, Chief Executive, Chorley Council  
Councillor Jane Fitzsimons, Executive Member Homes & Housing, Chorley Council  
Chris Sinnott, Deputy Director and Director (Early Intervention and Support) 
 

Evidence submitted by  
The following witnesses submitted written evidence for the task group to consider: 
Richard Houghton, Director of Operations (CCH) 
Jane Hurley, Operations Manager - West, Places for People (PfP) 
Joanne Danaher, Head of Neighbourhoods & Leasehold (Onward)  
Sir Lindsay Hoyle MP  
Chorley Help the Homeless  

Agenda Page 57 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 97 Agenda Item 9



Background  
In October 2017 it was agreed that a Task Group investigate this issue commencing 
in January 2018 with Councillor Jane Fitzsimons as the Chair.  Councillor Fitzsimons 
became an Executive Member in May 2018 and so the Chair of the Task Group 
became Councillor Matthew Lynch.   
 
Members had received complaints from residents about this topic, but there seemed 
to be inconsistencies in the cases reported and perception of acceptable standards.  
Members wished to evidence whether there are unacceptable standards in housing 
provided by social landlords and to make recommendations for improvements where 
appropriate.   
 
Chorley Community Housing (CCH) and Places for People are the two largest 
landlords managing most of the social housing in borough. 
 
The Council interacts regularly with the Registered Providers (RPs) in terms of 
securing new properties via the Select Move Choice based lettings scheme, 
Community Safety Partnership working, Planning and Community Engagement. 
 
The Homes and Communities Agency, relaunched as Homes England, are the 
regulators of RPs.  Their objective as social housing regulators is to work alongside 
RPs performing their functions in a way that minimises interference. 
 
RPs are regulated to make sure that they’re well managed and financially secure, to 
maintain confidence, protecting homes for tenants, however the council have limited 
information in terms of how this is enforced by Homes England or what powers, if 
any, they have when issues are reported. 
 
There have been a number of changes introduced nationally which the RPs claim 
are impacting on their business models. In particular, the Welfare Reform changes 
which have been introduced over a number of years. RPs have seen an impact on 
the pattern of demand for properties and revenue streams seeing a reduction of 1% 
each year for four years which commences April 2016. 
 

Decent Homes Standards 
Members considered the Decent Homes Standards, although these are no longer in 
force.  In 2000 the Department for Environment, Transport and the Regions 
published its Housing Green Paper, Quality and Choice: A Decent Home for All.  It 
requested a step change in the quality of the stock and the performance of social 
landlords with a committed to ensuring that all social housing is of a decent standard 
within 10 years. 
 
The Decent Homes Standard was a technical standard introduced by government 
which underpinned the Decent Homes Programme which aimed to provide a 
minimum standard of housing conditions for all those who are housed in the public 
sector.  The standard evolved and the criteria against which 'decency' is measured 
were set early in the programme and changed in 2006 by the introduction of the 
Housing Health and Safety Rating System (HHSRS) under the Housing Act 2004. 
 

Agenda Page 58 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 98 Agenda Item 9



Absence of Category 1 hazards under the HHSRS became the test of criterion, 
replacing the previous statutory 'fitness' standard. The then government were of the 
opinion that the tough new statutory assessment of housing standards raised the bar 
to drive further housing improvements which also led to an increased number of 
homes that could be considered to contain hazards.  This replaced any tangible 
standards measures which were seen in the decent homes standards. 
 
For purpose of background information and understanding, the decent homes 
standards guidance which provided a framework for RPs to assess standards within 
their stock, are: 
·         The property should meet the HHSRS 
·         To be in a reasonable state of repair 
·         To have reasonably modern facilities and services 
·         To have efficient heating and effective insulation 
 
Some examples of how properties can be deemed not a decent standard by an RP. 
·         Hazards in the home such as persistent damp or a heating or electrical system 

that is in poor condition. (This is based risk and the Council can undertake 
enforcement) 

·         Bathroom has not been improved in the last 30 years 
·         Kitchen has an inadequate layout or not enough space 
·         It isn't warm because of an inefficient heating system or ineffective insulation 
 

Select Move choice-based lettings system 
Members discussed the Select Move choice-based lettings system and noted that 
the system has operated in Chorley from March 2011.  It includes RPs from Chorley, 
namely Accent, CCH, New Progress, Contour, and Places for People. The scheme 
operates a single waiting list and advertising and letting of at least 75% of their void 
housing stock on the system. One of the main priorities for the Council over a 
number of years has been to ensure a significant proportion of social housing 
continues to be available and is accessed for those applicants in housing need with 
a local connection to Chorley. The relationship with the RPs is through the Select 
Move Steering Group governed by a memorandum of understanding which has been 
instrumental in maintaining a decent level of percentages of properties to continue to 
be advertised to those in need. 
 
Although the Council work regularly with RPs in regard to allocations and community 
involvement, it has limited knowledge of the full extent of the standards within 
Chorley, good or bad. This is due to level of involvement from the Council when new 
tenants are signed up. The Councils Housing Options Team’s priorities have been to 
secure properties for people in need with a local connection, so they view allocations 
as a success and do very little follow up on move in, which is mainly due to 
resources. 
 

Regulatory Services 
The Council will be involved with property standards or take action if a property is 
deemed to have risk that contravenes the HHSRS. This can be frustrating for tenants 
as issues that were brought to the attention of the housing team can be on 
cleanliness and décor, so no real access to challenge. 
 

Agenda Page 59 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 99 Agenda Item 9



In 2017 Regulatory Services (RS) received 23 housing standards complaints relating 
to RP properties (2 were about the same issue affecting adjoining properties). 10 
properties were visited, the others were dealt with by contacting the tenant and the 
RP (usually this is where the tenant is not satisfied with the timescale for repairs 
provided), and RS will confirm the repairs are on schedule and close the case. 
 
In January 18, RS served notice on CCH regarding pests at 2 properties.  They had 
13 complaints in 2016 and 7 in 2015 logged on council systems, however this will not 
include any call backs that were dealt with straight away and not inputted on IT 
systems.  RS figures give a very limited view of standards as the threshold is high to 
trigger a case and it does not reflect complaints or enquires made direct to the RP. 
 

Tenant Survey  
Members agreed to undertake a survey of a random sample of 4,000 tenants of the 
five Registered Providers with the most properties in Chorley: CCH, Places for 
People, Accent, Contour and New Progress.  This included smaller estates within 
Chorley.      
 
The survey included questions on the following themes:    
1. Customer Service 
2. Property Maintenance and Standards 
3. Engagement and Communication 
4. Neighbourhood  
5. Future Property Needs 
 

Member Survey  
Members of the Council gave feedback on their casework relating to social housing.  
The types of query are predominantly property maintenance and standards related.  
Most Members who responded advised that the number of complaints has stayed 
about the same in the last three years.  In relation to relationships with Registered 
Providers Members gave varied responses, the majority highlighting that the quality 
of provision varies from area to area across the borough. 
 

Interviews  
The Task Group interviewed Jayne Hurley (Places for People) and Richard 
Houghton (Chorley Community Housing).    
 
One RP has undertaken a survey of all of their properties.  The Group has taken this 
as a positive step and notes that it is up to RPs to achieve an acceptable standard 
for their properties. 
 

Tenant Survey results 
The survey was posted to 4,000 tenants, with an option to respond online. The 
survey represents around two thirds of the properties owned by Registered 
Providers. The survey ran for a four-week period commencing in May, with 731 
responses in total (18.3%). This is considered a solid response rate for this type of 
survey. 
 
 

Agenda Page 60 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 100 Agenda Item 9



The response rates per provider were:  
20.5% Chorley Community Housing 

15.9% Places for People 

18.1% Accent 
13.4% New Progress 

12.1% Onward 

 
Customer service 

81.9% of tenants were satisfied with the initial speed of response with their RP. 
72.1% of tenants were satisfied with the speed of progress/ resolution with their RP. 
83.9% of tenants were satisfied with the helpfulness of staff at their RP. 
79.5% of tenants were satisfied overall with how their contact is dealt with their RP. 
 
The majority of the comments relate to maintenance. 
“Whenever I need to report a repair, I am met with politeness and helpful 
advice to deal with any emergency”, “When you ring up about a repair it takes 
so long it can take up to a month before they come out and look at it. Then a 
couple of weeks before they do the job”. 
 
Property standards and maintenance 

72.9% of tenants were satisfied with the standard of their property when they moved 
in. 
73.4% of tenants were satisfied with the general grounds maintenance and cleaning 
service for their communal areas. 
77.8% of tenants were satisfied with the overall quality of their property. 
75.8% of tenants were satisfied with the repairs and maintenance carried out on their 
property. 
 
The majority of the comments relate to issues with repairs. 
“Nothing has been replaced in my property in 13 years. The standards have 
slipped a lot”, “Although the quality of the build of the property was excellent. 
There was however some confusion over the snagging that needed doing - any 
that took place - that was of poor quality & not in line with the standard of the 
property. Poor finish on numerous things”. 
 
Engagement and communication 

72.7% of tenants agree that their RP keep them well informed about their services. 
60.5% of tenants agree that their RP provides opportunities for them to have their 
say. 
52.7% of tenants agree that their RP listens and acts on feedback. 
 
The majority of comments relate to a lack of communication and complaints not 
having been dealt with.  
“I would like our landlord to be more communicative and listen to tenants on 
what we need and improvements”, “They send out yearly information and I 
know I can contact them if I require any. I am happy with the service”. 
 
There were comments relating to possible improvements.  
“It can sometimes be hard to get hold of the housing association maybe text 
messaging service where you can text a concern or need would be better”, 

Agenda Page 61 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 101 Agenda Item 9



“Many elderly are not computer or tech savy.  They need old-fashioned 
personal contact or contact by letter”, “Since we stopped having residents 
meetings I do not feel "in touch" with my landlord. Having lived here for so 
long my original agreement must be really outdate but I have never been 
offered an update”, “We used to get a newsletter every 3-4 months which had 
lots of information on it. But sadly we don't receive them anymore. I feel very 
strongly that communication within our housing association could be better 
much room for improvement”. 
 
Neighbourhoods 

85.0% of tenants agree that their neighbourhood is a good place to live. 
88.6% of tenants agree that they feel safe in their neighbourhood during the day. 
76.3% of tenants agree that they feel safe in their neighbourhood during the night. 
66.0% of tenants agree that anti-social behaviour is dealt with in their 
neighbourhood. 
 
The majority of comments relate to their area being a nice place to live.  
“My neighbourhood is very good with the exception of just two sets of 
neighbours”, “Until recently it was a nice, friendly quiet neighbourhood”, “This 
neighbourhood is supposed to be for over 55 year old. Last year a person in 
her 40s got a flat and has become a nuisance with her attitude”. 
 
Satisfaction with Registered Providers 

84.4% Chorley Community Housing 

70.9% Accent 
67.2% Places for People 

 
The majority of comments relate to satisfaction with maintenance and repairs. 
“Service is excellent. Properties are maintained to a high standard but allowed 
to make your property your own personal space”, “Repairs are done but not 
within a reasonable timescale”, “Basically paying for services which we don't 
get! And management fees for nothing!” 

 
Future property needs 

81.1% of tenants agree that their property meets their needs overall. 
83.5% Chorley Community Housing 

77.1% Places for People 

77.0% Accent 
 
The majority of comments relate to looking for a new property elsewhere, in a quieter 
area or a different sized property. Elderly tenants have raised the issue of wanting a 

garden.  
“Due to my age will probably need ground floor flat for my wife & I”, “Although 
we are happy with our flat and neighbours we would like to move into a 
bungalow with a small garden”, “I am content with my flat and hope to live 
here for many years”. 
 
In conclusion, there are generally high levels of agreement throughout the survey 

results. Tenants would like to see maintenance and repairs completed quicker and 

older and disabled tenants were more likely to highlight requests to modifications to 

Agenda Page 62 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 102 Agenda Item 9



their properties or a change of property to meet their needs.  
 
The survey was sent to a random sample across the whole Borough and it is 
possible for further analysis to be undertaken to identify the geographical areas 
where respondents lived, and by age and length of tenancy. 
 

Conclusion  
The Council is ahead of the curve in terms of the aspirations of the Housing Green 
Paper and contributing to the aspirations of the Chorley Housing Company. 
 
The Council has no powers to enforce change, but the Group has looked at working 
practices of RP’s to gauge best practice and issues which need to be addressed on 
behalf of Chorley residents.  
 
There have been a number of changes introduced nationally which the RPs claim 
are impacting on their business models. In particular, the Welfare Reform changes 
which have been introduced over a number of years. 
 
RP’s must recognise when a tenant is causing detriment to the community and be 
proactive with early intervention to resolve issues, although whilst the Council and 
RP’s can fulfil their duties and obligations all tenants have a community responsibility 
to invest in their local community and environment.  
 
 

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 10Agenda Page 103 Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 104 Agenda Item 9



 

OVERVIEW AND SCUTINY COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 2019/20 

 

To be considered: 10 Jul 25 Jul 26 Sep 10 Oct 23 Jan 30 Jan 5 Mar 19 Mar 

OSPP OSC OSC OSPP OSC OSPP OSPP OSC 

Panel Meeting (OSPP) to 
consider Council and 
related performance in 
addition to scrutiny of key 
service areas  

* 
Customer 
and Digital 

 

 * 
Early 

Intervention 
and Support 

 
* 

Policy and 
Governance 

* 
Business, 
Development 
and Growth  

 

Performance Report /  
Business Plans 

Quarter Four    Business 
Plans  

Quarter Two  
Business 

Plans  
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Performance Panel 
minutes 

 * *  *   * 

Executive Cabinet Minutes 
 * *  *   * 

Notice of Executive 
Decisions 

 * *  *   * 

Health Scrutiny 
 * *  *   * 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme 

 * *  *   * 

Annual Reporting Back  
 

* 
      

Syrian Refugee 
Resettlement 

 
* 

      

Budget Scrutiny  
    *    

Air Quality 
       * 

Adoption of Estates 
 

 
     * 

Waste Management 
Contract 

 
 

*      

Gypsy and Traveller 
Temporary Encampments 

 
* 

      

Subsidised Bus Services 
 

 
*      

Neighbourhood Area 
Meetings & CIL (following 
the Electoral Review) 

 
 

  *    

Scrutiny Reviews  

Developing the Council’s 
Green Agenda 

  S  C    

Quality of housing 
provided by social 
landlords 

    R    

Roll out of Superfast 
Broadband by BT 

  M2     M3 

Indoor Leisure Contract          

Crime and Disorder Scrutiny  

Focus for this year?         

Community Safety 
Partnership – Child Sexual 
Exploitation 

       M2 

Potential topics for future reviews  

Community Racial 
Integration  

        

Flooding         

Market Walk         

Key:  
Task Group Reviews:  
S Scoping of the review  R Feedback/response from the Executive Cab 
C Collecting and considering evidence  M Monitoring Reports, 1 2 and 3 (if required) 
FR Final report of the review  V Verbal update from the Chair 
 

Agenda Page 105 Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Minutes of meeting Thursday, 26 September 2019 of Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	4 Executive Cabinet Minutes
	Printed minutes 14th-Nov-2019 18.30 Executive Cabinet

	5 Notice of Executive Decisions
	6 Budget Scrutiny
	Appendix 1 - Cumulative Budget Position

	7 Health Scrutiny
	9 Executive Cabinet Response to the Overview and Scrutiny Task Group on Social Housing Standards
	Appendix a for Overview & Scrutiny Task Group - Social Housing Standards
	10 Reports from the Task and Finish Groups


	11 Overview and Scrutiny Work Programme



